
Meeting contact Democratic Services or email democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk

COUNCIL
WEDNESDAY, 28TH FEBRUARY, 2018, 6.00 PM

SHIELD ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, WEST PADDOCK, LEYLAND, PR25 
1DH

AGENDA

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest

Members are requested to notify Democratic Services, by 
4.00pm on the day of the meeting, of any items on the 
agenda in which they have an interest and the nature of the 
interest. They should do so by email to 
democraticservices@southribble.gov.uk.

Members are reminded that if the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of 
Conduct) they must leave the room for the whole of the item.

Where the interest is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
but is such that a member of the public could reasonably 
regard it as being so significant that it is likely that it would 
prejudice a Member’s judgment of the public interest (as 
explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may stay in the 
meeting to make representations, answer questions or give 
evidence relating to the item but then must withdraw from the 
meeting for the remainder of that item. Where such an 
interest is in an item to be discussed in exempt session, 
members are reminded that they must withdraw from the 
meeting for the whole of that item.

3 Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 5 - 14)

Held on Wednesday 17 January 2018 (attached), to be 
signed as a correct record.

4 Mayors Announcements

5 Report of Cabinet and Committees

5a Minutes of Governance Committee held on 31 January 
2018

(Pages 15 - 20)

Copy attached.

Public Document Pack



5b Minutes of Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 8 
February 2018

(Pages 21 - 26)

Copy attached.

5c Minutes of Cabinet meeting held on 14 February 2018 (Pages 27 - 30)

Copy attached.

6 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and Corporate Risk Register 
2018/19

(Pages 31 - 70)

Report of the Interim Improvement Manager attached.

7 Capital Strategy (Pages 71 - 78)

Report of the Deputy Section 151 Officer attached.

8 Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Strategy

8a Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Strategy (Pages 79 - 98)

Report of the Deputy Section 151 Officer attached.

8b Proposed Amendment to the Budget 2018/19 by the 
Labour Group

(Pages 99 - 102)

Amendment by the Labour Group attached.

9 Council Tax Setting 2018/19 (Pages 103 - 110)

All members of this Council are reminded that they have a 
dispensation to allow them to take part and vote on decisions 
relating to setting the Council Tax under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992.

Report of the Revenues Manager attached.

10 Treasury Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 (Pages 111 - 126)

Report of the Deputy Section 151 Officer attached.

11 Timetable of Meetings 2018/19 (Pages 127 - 134)

Report of the Interim Monitoring Officer attached.

12 Notice of Motion (Pages 135 - 136)

Notice of the attached Motion has been submitted in 
accordance with Standing Order number 10(2). The Council’s 
attention is drawn to Standing Order number 10(4), which 
deals with the disposal of Motions.

The Motion is proposed by Councillor Paul Wharton and 
seconded by Councillor Claire Hamilton.



Heather McManus
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Council Councillors Michael Titherington 
(Mayor), John Rainsbury (Deputy Mayor), Jane Bell, Warren Bennett, David Bird, 
Renee Blow, Carol Chisholm, Colin Clark, Colin Coulton, Malcolm Donoghue, 
Bill Evans, Derek Forrest, Paul Foster, Mary Green, Michael Green, Claire Hamilton, 
Harry Hancock, Jon Hesketh, Mick Higgins, David Howarth, Cliff Hughes, 
Ken Jones, Susan Jones, Jim Marsh, Keith Martin, Elizabeth Mawson, 
Caroline Moon, Jacqui Mort, Peter Mullineaux, Barbara Nathan, Mike Nathan, 
Mike Nelson, Rebecca Noblet, Alan Ogilvie, James Patten, Margaret Smith, 
Phil Smith, Susan Snape, David Suthers, Caleb Tomlinson, Matthew Tomlinson, 
Karen Walton, Graham Walton, Ian Watkinson, David Watts, Paul Wharton, 
Jonathan Woodcock, David Wooldridge, Linda Woollard and Barrie Yates

The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk

Forthcoming Meetings
6.00 pm Wednesday, 21 March 2018 - Shield Room, Civic Centre, West Paddock, 
Leyland, PR25 1DH

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

 
MINUTES OF 
 

COUNCIL 

MEETING DATE 
 

Wednesday, 17 January 2018 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillors Michael Titherington (Mayor), John Rainsbury 
(Deputy Mayor), Jane Bell, Warren Bennett, David Bird, 
Renee Blow, Carol Chisholm, Colin Clark, Colin Coulton, 
Malcolm Donoghue, Bill Evans, Derek Forrest, Paul Foster, 
Mary Green, Michael Green, Claire Hamilton, Harry Hancock, 
Jon Hesketh, Mick Higgins, David Howarth, Cliff Hughes, 
Ken Jones, Susan Jones, Jim Marsh, Keith Martin, 
Caroline Moon, Jacqui Mort, Peter Mullineaux, Mike Nelson, 
Rebecca Noblet, Alan Ogilvie, James Patten, Margaret Smith, 
Phil Smith, Susan Snape, David Suthers, Caleb Tomlinson, 
Matthew Tomlinson, Karen Walton, Graham Walton, 
Ian Watkinson, David Watts, Paul Wharton, David Wooldridge, 
Linda Woollard and Barrie Yates 
 

OFFICERS: Heather McManus (Chief Executive), Dave Whelan (Legal 
Services Manager/Monitoring Officer), Andy Houlker (Senior 
Democratic Services Officer), Jane Blundell (Deputy Section 
151 Officer), Roger Ashcroft (Waste & Transport & 
Neighbourhoods Manager) and Jonathan Noad (Planning 
Manager) 
 

OTHER OFFICERS: 7 
 

PUBLIC: 45 
 

68 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Elizabeth Mawson, Barbara 
Nathan, Mike Nathan and Jonathan Woodcock. 
 

69 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That subject to an amendment to Minute No. 52a (last sentence at the bottom of 
page 7) with the insertion of ‘A councillor stated and’ …, the minutes of the Council 
meeting held on 22 November 2017 be approved as a correct record. 
 

70 Declarations of Interest 
 
The Interim Monitoring Officer declared a prejudicial interest in the final item on the 
agenda (Item 15 - Shared Services) as his post was included in the report and stated 
he would leave the meeting when this was to be discussed.  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



36 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

71 Mayoral Announcements 
 
The Mayor commented that a number of events were being arranged and publicised 
and hoped Members of the Council and public would support them. 
 

72 Report of Cabinet and Committees 
 

72a Minutes of Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 27 November 2017 
 
The Council considered the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 27 
November 2017. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Matthew Tomlinson, seconded by Councillor Colin 
Coulton and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 27 November 2017 be 
noted. 
 

72b Minutes of Governance Committee meeting held on 29 November 2017 
 
The Council considered the minutes of the Governance Committee meeting held on 
29 November 2017. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Alan Ogilvie, seconded by Councillor James Patten and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Governance Committee meeting held on 29 November 2017 
be noted. 
 

72c Minutes of Cabinet meeting held on 6 December 2017 
 
The Council considered the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 6 December 
2017. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Peter Mullineaux, seconded by Councillor Colin Clark 
and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 6 December 2017 be noted. 
 

72d Minutes of Standards Committee meeting held on  7 December 2017 
 
The Council considered the minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 7 
December 2017. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Linda Woollard, seconded by Councillor Carol Chisholm 
and 
 
 

Page 6



37 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Standards Committee meeting held on 7 December 2017 be 
noted. 
 

73 Final Report from the Scrutiny Review of Staff Morale (including Cabinet 
response) 
 
Further to Minute No. 44 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 25 October 2017, the 
Council considered a report of the Interim Monitoring Officer detailing the work of a 
Scrutiny Committee Task Group into the issue of staff morale and the Cabinet’s 
response to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee Task Force. The 
Committee had made several recommendations to Cabinet and all were accepted. 
 
The following documents were appended to the report: 
 
Appendix – Cabinet report dated the 25 October 2017 
Appendix A – Action Plan to address the recommendations of the Scrutiny 
Committee Task Group 
Appendix B – Report of the Scrutiny Committee Task Group – Review of Staff 
Morale. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Peter Mullineaux, seconded by Councillor Colin Clark 
and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Scrutiny Committee Task Group Review of Staff Morale and the Cabinet 
response to it be noted. 
 

74 Review of Fees and Charges 
 
Further to Minute No. 51 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 6 December 2017, 
the Council considered the report presented by the Cabinet member for Finance 
(Councillor Susan Snape).  This provided details of the review of fees and charges 
pricing policies across the Council to generate additional income. 
 
The report with the exception of recommendation 2 was moved by Councillor Susan 
Snape and seconded by Councillor Peter Mullineaux: 
 
Namely, that recommendations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8 be approved. 
 
The withdrawal of recommendation 2 relating to car parking charges at Worden Park 
was welcomed.  
 
An amendment was moved by Councillor Paul Foster and seconded by Councillor 
David Wooldridge that in addition to withdrawing recommendation 2, 
recommendations 4 and 5 should also be withdrawn.  These related to proposed 
changes to the pay and displaying parking charges, including those at Leyland 
Railway Station. 
 
Following debate, the vote on the amendment was For: 21, Against: 22, Abstention: 
3 and the Mayor declared that the amendment was lost. 

Page 7



38 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

 
The Mayor then took the vote on the original (substantive) motion to approve 
recommendations 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8.  The vote was For: 21, Against: 21, 
Abstention: 4. In view of the tied vote, the Mayor used his casting to vote against the 
motion.  The motion was subsequently lost – For: 21, Against: 22, Abstention: 4.    
 
RESOLVED (For: 21, Against: 22, Abstention: 4):  
 
That the recommendations in the report not be approved. 
 

75 Standards Committee Annual Report 
 
Further to Minute No. 19 of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 7 
December 2017, the Council considered the Annual Report of the Interim Monitoring 
Officer on the Standards work carried out over the last 12 months. 
 
This included: 
 

• the appointment of a second Independent Person,  
• the development of a Social Media Protocol,  
• amending the Hearing and Investigation Procedure for Dealing with 

Complaints, 
• reviewing the Code of Conduct for Elected Members and the development of 

Guidance relating to it, 
• details of the number of complaints against members that had been dealt with   

 
The report also contained details of the number of Ombudsman complaints received 
and Members’ attendance figures. 
 
In respect of the number of complaints lodged in the report, some members raised 
concerns about potentially vexatious/mischievous complaints. The Interim Monitoring 
Officer commented that each complaint had to be dealt with on its own merits.   
 
It was moved by Councillor Linda Woollard, seconded by Councillor Carol Chisholm 
and 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Standards Committee Annual Report be noted. 
 

76 Questions to the Leader of the Council 
 
(a) Written question submitted by Councillor Claire Hamilton: 
 
“Please could the Leader confirm his statement made at the Cabinet Meeting on 
Wednesday 21st June that South Ribble residents who opt out of using their brown 
bin and dispose garden waste in their grey bin will not be charged?” 
 
Councillor Peter Mullineaux (Leader of the Council) confirmed that the statement 
was correct.  
 
 
 

Page 8



39 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

(b) Councillor Sue Jones referred to the last meeting of the Cabinet which 
had been very hot without water or tables and asked that the room layout be re-
considered? 
 
The Leader stated he did not want members in discomfort and agreed that it would 
be looked at. 
 
(c) A member of the public asked if the Leader agreed that if the position of an 

elected Mayor was to be introduced for Lancashire this should not be 
imposed but selected by referendum?  

 
The Leader was not aware of any such proposal and if the regulations required a 
referendum, residents would need to be consulted. 
 

77 Questions to Members of the Cabinet 
 
Corporate Support & Assets 
 
No questions were asked. 
 
Finance 
 
No questions were asked. 
 
Neighbourhoods & Street Scene 
 
Councillor Caleb Tomlinson asked if the portfolio holder agreed that the 
improvement works to Withy Grove Park looked fantastic and an excellent piece of 
work by the Council? 
 
The portfolio holder agreed that the park was looking good and was sure that the 
work was appreciated by residents and visitors to the park.  
 
Public Health, Safety & Wellbeing 
 
(a) Councillor Ken Jones referred to poisonous air being breathed by residents of 
Leyland and welcomed the Air Quality Management Area and asked what was 
actually being done (action plan) to stop this? 
 
The Cabinet member stated that a full borough wide action plan was imminently 
being brought forward. 
 
(b) A member of the public asked a question on the same topic referring to 
information on the Council’s website, a 2016 plan and that Lostock Hall was 
identified as one of the worst areas.  The issues dated back to 2012 and wanted to 
know what was being done and when? 
 
The Cabinet member indicated that a lot of the issues were outside the control of this 
Council. This council did liaise with such bodies as Lancashire County Council being 
the highway authority. There had been changes and that was why the Council was 
updating its action plan to address these issues.  If any specific questions were 
emailed to her she was more than happy to speak to the individual outside the 
meeting. 

Page 9



40 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

 
Regeneration & Leisure 
 
(a) Referring to the Gateway features that had been introduced in the borough, 
Councillor Howarth asked if consideration could be given to assist in the provision of 
an attractive Gateway feature in Penwortham? 
 
The Cabinet member replied that following recent developments in Penwortham 
such as the sod cutting for the bypass which would improve regeneration and 
businesses the Council had ideas in mind which included Gateway features. 
 
(b) Councillor David Wooldridge sought confirmation of his understanding that 
City Deal monies were currently being used on projects in Higher Penwortham and 
not wider Penwortham such as Charnock and Middleforth. 
 
The Cabinet member confirmed that this was in a sense correct in that the area of 
major expenditure was the identified transport corridor around Liverpool Road. 
 
Strategic Planning & Housing 
 
(a) Councillor Paul Wharton asked if there was an update on investment in 
housing to rent? 
 
The Cabinet member asked for the question in writing which he would respond to. 
 
(b) A member of the public asked whether the Council had set a target for the 
use of brownfield land in its planning policies? 
 
The Cabinet member replied that the Council supported keeping as much land as 
possible green and re-using brownfield sites.  As part of the need to have a five year 
supply of development land it endeavoured that 70% of this was brownfield.  Since 
2005 the average percentage of new housing delivered on previously developed 
land within South Ribble had been 71%. This varied year to year but was in line with 
the overall target for Central Lancashire. The Council endeavoured to target as 
much development on brownfield sites as it could but had to balance that against the 
need to deliver a targeted supply of houses. 
 

78 Questions to Chairmen of Committees and My Neighbourhood Areas 
 
Councillor Jane Bell thanked Councillor Colin Coulton for his support and if he 
agreed that following all the hard work by officers and cross-party councillors on 
dementia that the borough was becoming Dementia Friendly? Next week there 
would be a number agencies delivering dementia awareness training in the Civic 
Centre. 
 
Councillor Colin Coulton thanked Councillor Jane Bell for her words and agreed. 
 

79 Questions to Member Champions and Representatives on Outside Bodies 
 
Councillor Keith Martin referred to the recent update regarding Westinghouse and 
asked the Council’s representative on the Springfields Site Stakeholder Group what 
impact if any this had on the operation of the Springfields site. 
 

Page 10



41 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

As the Council’s representative was not a Councillor and not present, the question 
would be forwarded. 
 

80 Notice of Motion 
 
It was moved by Councillor Paul Wharton and seconded by Councillor Claire 
Hamilton: 
 
“Due to financial pressures faced by this authority, the Council are forced to look at 
measures to make efficiencies and generate revenue. All areas should be explored 
by this Council.  
 
From April, the Council will bring in a charge to residents for brown waste collections 
which is a non-statutory service, and increase car parking charges in our town 
centres. For the “jewel in the crown”, Worden Park, the Council is proposing to 
introduce car park charges, and in last year’s budget, it was forecast council tax will 
rise this year putting a greater burden on residents. 
 
We feel that as Councillors, we should be the ones who lead by example in these 
difficult financial times. 
 
Therefore, this Council agrees free of charge committee meals for elected members 
should be abolished with immediate effect in line with many other local authorities, to 
ease the pressure on the Council’s budget and to demonstrate our support to our 
local residents and businesses.” 
 
An amendment was subsequently moved by Councillor Paul Foster and seconded 
by Councillor Peter Mullineaux.  The Council was already looking at the wider 
catering provision including member catering whilst reviewing the Council’s 
Banqueting Suite.   
 
The amendment removed the last paragraph (Therefore, this Council …) and 
replaced it with the following two paragraphs: 
 
“The Council notes that the subject of committee meals is already being considered 
as part of the detailed review of all catering facilities. The Council looks forward to 
receiving recommendations in due course. 
 
As South Ribble Borough Councillors we have always led by example, particularly 
regarding Allowances and Expenses and will continue to do so.” 
 
Councillor Paul Wharton stated he did not support the amendment. 
 
Following debate, the amended Motion was put to the vote and the Mayor declared 
that it was carried by 43 votes to 2. 
 

81 Notice of Motion 
 
In moving the motion Councillor Paul Wharton amended in the last paragraph ‘will be 
impaired’ to ‘may be impaired’, this was seconded by Councillor Claire Hamilton: 
 
“For elected members to be consuming alcohol before making decisions which can 
affect the lives of many residents and businesses across our borough simply is not 

Page 11



42 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

right. Any amount of alcohol can affect a person’s decision making ability. Most 
private sector employers have an outright ban on alcohol during working hours and 
our residents should expect the same from their elected members. 
 
Therefore, this Council agrees that all councillors should not attend meetings or act 
as representatives of the Council if they are under the influence of alcohol, as their 
ability to contribute and their judgement may be impaired.” 
 
Councillor Peter Mullineaux proposed and Councillor Paul Foster seconded an 
amendment that removed the last sentence in the first paragraph and the whole of 
the second paragraph.  It also added the words ‘Therefore this Council confirms that 
all councillors should abide by the Code of Conduct for Elected Members and in all 
aspects of their Public Life.’ 
 
The amended motion then read as: 
 
“For elected members to be consuming alcohol before making decisions which can 
affect the lives of many residents and businesses across our borough simply is not 
right. Any amount of alcohol can affect a person’s decision making ability. 
 
Therefore this Council confirms that all councillors should abide by the Code of 
Conduct for Elected Members in all aspects of their Public Life.” 
 
Following a request, members were advised by the Interim Monitoring Officer that it 
was an amendment to the original motion and not a negation. Whilst there was no 
specific reference to the consumption of alcohol In the Code of Conduct there were 
more general provisions that would cover it. 
 
Following debate, the amended Motion was put to the vote and the Mayor declared 
that it was carried by 44 votes to 2.  
 

82 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of 
the following item of business as it involved the discussion of information defined as 
exempt from publication under paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, ‘Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) ‘ and in which the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in 
disclosing it. 
 

83 Shared Services 
 
Further to Minute No. 18 of the meeting of the Joint Shared Services Committee held 
on 11 January 2018, the Council considered the joint report of the Chief Executives 
of South Ribble and Chorley Councils which provided details of the progress made in 
developing operating models for the two Councils in the expansion of shared 
services and the proposed next steps. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Peter Mullineaux and seconded by Councillor Colin 
Clark. 

Page 12



43 
 

 
Council Wednesday 17 January 2018 

 

 
Concerns were expressed by Councillors from both sides of the Council at the 
lateness of receiving the report on such a significant matter.  It was explained that 
the report had been dependent on the outcome of the meeting of the Shared 
Services Joint Committee held on Thursday 11 January 2018. The report had been 
issued electronically on Tuesday and also posted 1st Class.  However, a number of 
members indicated that they had not received the report by either method.  There 
was then a discussion as to whether the report should either be deferred or the 
meeting be adjourned for a period of 20 minutes to enable Councillors to read it.   
 
It was proposed by Councillor Paul Foster and seconded by Councillor Paul Wharton 
that consideration of the report be deferred. 
 
The Mayor then took the vote on the proposal which was: For: 26, Against: 19.  The 
motion was carried.    
 
RESOLVED (For: 26, Against: 19):  
 
That the report be deferred for further consideration by Council at a later date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair Date 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance Committee Wednesday 31 January 2018

DRAFT
MINUTES OF GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE Wednesday, 31 January 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillors Alan Ogilvie (Chair), James Patten (Vice-Chair), 
David Bird, Margaret Smith and Karen Walton

OFFICERS: Garry Barclay (Head of Shared Assurance Services), Jane 
Blundell (Deputy Section 151 Officer), Lee Hurst (Principal 
Systems & Financial Accountant), Dave Whelan (Legal 
Services Manager/Monitoring Officer), Dawn Highton (Principal 
Auditor (South Ribble)), Joanne Platt (Interim Corporate 
Improvement Manager) and Dave Lee (Democratic Services 
Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS 
AND OFFICERS:

Councillor Clifford Hughes MBE (Cabinet Member for Strategic 
Planning and Housing), Councillor Keith Martin, Councillor 
Jacqueline Mort (Cabinet Member for Public Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing), Councillor Phil Smith (Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Leisure), Tracy Boustead (Interim HR and 
OD Officer), Darren Cranshaw (Scrutiny & Performance 
Manager), Heather McManus (Chief Executive), Mark Hodges 
(Partnership Development Manager) and Jonathan Noad 
(Planning Manager) also Simon Hardman (Grant Thornton 
PLC) and Mark Heap (Grant Thornton PLC)

PUBLIC: 2

40 Apologies for absence

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Paul Foster.

41 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

42 Minutes of the Last Meeting

RESOLVED (Unanimously):

That the minutes of the meeting of the committee held on 29 November 2017 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the chairman.

In respect minute 39, the Committee was informed that the Council had been 
working through the selection of an appropriate procurement partner/expertise to 
help deliver the strategy. The timescales of the selection process were in line and 
the delivery of that project was still on course.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5a



Governance Committee Wednesday 31 January 2018

43 Treasury Management Activity - update to 31 December 2017

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy S151 Officer on Treasury 
Management performance to the end of December 2017 and updates on other 
issues relevant to Treasury Management activity.

The mid-year review of the Treasury Strategy and Treasury Management 
activity required by the Code of Practice for Treasury Management was presented to 
the Governance Committee’s meeting on 13 September 2017. This provided 
updated information in respect of Treasury Management activity, and issues relevant 
to Treasury Management.

During the discussion the Committee commented on areas which included – 

 A new report to provide members with a high level summary of the overall 
capital strategy and to see how the cash resources of the authority have been 
apportioned between treasury and non-treasury investments

 The interest earning benchmark and the actual investment return 
 Further details be provided on Capita Group’s sale of Capita Treasury 

Solutions Limited (operating as Captia Asset Services) to the Link Group
 Appendix 1 to the report – due for an update as part of the budget process 

and consideration would need to be given to the maximum limits
 Appendix C to the report – PWLB rates would have to be monitored, in 

particular with the investment in leisure

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the report be noted.

44 Budget Management Report as at 31 December 2017

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy S151 Officer on the third quarter 
of the Council’s overall financial position. This forecast the projected outturn to 31st 
March 2018 in comparison to the 2017/18 original budget. 

The approved revenue budget set by the Council in February 2017 was £13.182m, 
with a budgeted transfer from general balances of £0.300m.

At the commencement of the meeting the Deputy S151 Officer informed the meeting 
that under Property Lease in the report the one-off charge in 2017/18 and the 
ongoing annual increase in rental should read £9,000. 

During the discussion the Committee commented on areas which included – 

 Of the Staffing saving (under the Revenue Expenditure) of £261k only £161k 
was on a recurring basis with the remainder met from staffing savings through 
vacancies, general turnover and reduced hours

 The forecast rental income was £42k lower than the original budget forecast 
for the year

 An increase in planning application fee income of at least £180k was forecast 
for the full year however this was based on the current assumption of 
upcoming major applications received and therefore was not certain and 
subject to variation

 Congratulated the Building Control Team which have achieved higher income 

Page 16



Governance Committee Wednesday 31 January 2018

than forecast
 Returns on investments and comparatives for the previous reporting period
 Additional income (car parking) was forecast to be achieved by the end of the 

financial year
 Business Rates Retention (BRR)
 Main capital projects which have been re-phased into 2018/19 (in line with the 

Corporate Plan)
 Net City Deal payments
 Further details be provided on the re-phased scheme into 2018/19 in respect 

of St Mary’s churchyard wall, Penwortham
   

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the report be noted.

45 External Audit - Update Report/Closure of Annual Accounts 2017/18 - 
plans to achieve the new deadline

The Committee considered a report of the Deputy S151 Officer on the progress of 
the preparation for the closure of accounts 2017/18 following the request of the 
Governance Committee in November 2017. The report also presented the external 
audit Progress Report and Sector Update from Grant Thornton along with their 
Certification Letter for the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim.

The Committee was informed that the internal plan would take us to 31 May 2018 
when the Council had to produce the accounts together with the working papers 
which would be approved by the responsible Finance Officer. Ultimately external 
audit would then formally commence the work on the accounts from 1 June 2018. 
External audit would undertake preliminary audit work (ie risk analysis) prior to this.

The Chair welcomed Mark Heap and Simon Hardman from the Council's External 
Auditors, Grant Thornton.

The External Auditors presented their progress report and provided a brief 
explanation on the Sector Update.

The progress report included information relating to the following:

 Financial Statements Audit
 Value for Money
 Details of workshops/network events
 Meeting the deadlines (challenges, completion of the VfM conclusion work, 

response timeframe etc)

In respect of looking at the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation 
(GPDR), it was reported that a number of officers were working on this and further 
details would be provided to the Committee.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the report, the Shared Financial Services Closure of Accounts Timetable 
(Appendix A to the report), the contents of the external auditor’s progress and 

Page 17



Governance Committee Wednesday 31 January 2018

update (Appendix B to the report) and the contents of the external auditor’s 
Certification Letter (Appendix C to the report) be noted.

46 2nd Internal Audit Interim Report as at 29th December 2017

The Committee considered a report of the Head of Shared Assurance Services on 
the progress made on the South Ribble and Shared Services Internal Audit Plans for 
the period August 2017 to December 2017.

In respect of further details of the Risk Register/Plan relating to South Ribble City 
Deal it was reported that this would be circulated to the Committee.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the report be noted.

47 Member and Officer Protocol

The Committee considered a report of the Interim Corporate Improvement Manager 
on the draft Member and Officer Protocol.

The interim Corporate Improvement Manager informed the meeting that Unison had 
been involved in the development of the protocol and their responses to this had 
been circulated to the Committee.

During the discussion the Committee commented on areas which included – 

 Consideration should be given to making the protocol more specific in respect 
of members’ sanctions

 The wording be looked at in relation to consultation with ward representatives 
on major issues (ie practices of planning applications)

 Policy/management of confidential information should be made clearer
 Clarification/ratification of draft minutes of Cabinet/Committees to full Council
 Issue of criticism/legitimate challenge of Cabinet Members questioned at full 

Council

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That – 
 

1. the draft Member and Officer Protocol shown at Appendix 1 to the report be 
agreed and that this now be recommended to Council for approval.

2. it be recommended to Council that all members of the Council and all Tier 1 – 
4 officers and any other officers whose posts are politically restricted be 
required to sign the Protocol to signify their acceptance of its contents and 
their commitment to their adherence to the Protocol. 

3. it be recommended to Council that the Member and Officer Protocol becomes 
a formal part of the Council’s revised Constitution.

Page 18



Governance Committee Wednesday 31 January 2018

48 Minutes Protocol

The Committee considered a report of the Legal Services Manager / Interim 
Monitoring Officer on the protocol for the production of the minutes of meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet and various Committees, to be used by the staff in the 
Democratic Services Team. 

There was a general consensus amongst members that the protocol should be 
supported.

The Committee was informed that once the document had been finalised this would 
be publicised on Councillor Connect and forwarded to all members.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the Minutes Protocol be noted.

49 Appeals Committee - Terms of Reference

The Committee considered a report of the Legal Services Manager / Interim 
Monitoring Officer on the proposed Appeals Committee Terms of Reference.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the draft Appeals Committee Terms of Reference at Appendix A to the report 
be agreed and that this now be recommended to Council for approval.

50 My Neighbourhood Area  Procedure Rules & Terms of Reference

The Committee considered a report of the Legal Services Manager / Interim 
Monitoring Officer on the proposed the proposed My Neighbourhood Area Procedure 
Rules and Terms of Reference.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

That the My Neighbourhood Area Procedure Rules and Terms of Reference be 
agreed and that this now be recommended to Council for approval.

Chair Date

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

DRAFT
MINUTES OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE Thursday, 8 February 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillors Matthew Tomlinson (Chair), Colin Coulton (Vice-
Chair), Carol Chisholm, Michael Green, Susan Jones, 
Keith Martin, Michael Titherington, Karen Walton and 
Linda Woollard

OFFICERS: Darren Cranshaw (Scrutiny & Performance Manager) and Andy 
Houlker (Senior Democratic Services Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS 
AND OFFICERS:

Councillor Jacqueline Mort (Cabinet Member for Public Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing), Councillor Phil Smith (Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Leisure), Councillor Mary Green, Howard 
Anthony (South Ribble Partnership Manager), Mark Hodges 
(Partnership Development Manager), Jonathan Noad (Planning 
Manager) and Joanne Platt (Interim Corporate Improvement 
Manager)

PUBLIC: 2

35 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Howarth, Barbara 
Nathan and Ian Watkinson.

36 Declarations of Interest

During consideration of Minute No.39 - Draft Corporate Plan 2018-23, Councillor 
Michael Green declared a personal interest as a member of Lancashire County 
Council indicating that he was a member of the City Deal and the Enterprise Board, 
under the Code of Conduct for Elected Members he was able to remain in the 
meeting and vote thereon.

37 Minutes of the Last Meeting

RESOLVED (Unanimously):

That the minutes of the Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 27 November 2017 be 
approved as a correct record.

38 Matters Arising from Previous Meetings

The Committee received updates on outstanding matters from previous meetings. It 
appeared that with the exception for the recommendation relating to the Cushman & 
Wakefield report, those had been accepted and acted upon. 

RESOLVED (Unanimously): that

Page 21

Agenda Item 5b



2

Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

1. with the exception of (2) below, all the responses to the outstanding matters 
be accepted and they be removed from the list; and

2. the response relating to Minute No.28(c) be not accepted and the Committee 
be provided with a copy of the Cushman and Wakefield report along with an 
explanation of how the report influenced the Council’s current thinking on 
assets and investment.

39 Draft Corporate Plan 2018-23

The Committee received a report from the Interim Corporate Improvement Manager 
on the Council’s new Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 and Corporate Risk Register for 
2018-19.  The Committee was asked for its views before it was considered by the 
Cabinet on 14 February and submission to Council for approval on 28 February 
2018.

The Corporate Plan provided a new Vision for the Council - that ‘South Ribble is 
and continues to be recognised nationally as the best place in the UK’.  It also 
included three new corporate priorities for 2018-2023:

 Excellence and financial sustainability 
 Health and wellbeing 
 Place

The Committee was advised of minor amendments to the Corporate Plan document 
since the papers were published.  These related to 

 reference to City Deal on page 4 amended to read ‘an initiative developed by 
partners and supported by central government’

 on page 10, Regeneration & Leisure added under Lead on Place Promotion 
and My Neighbourhood Plans

 the Local Plan and the Investment Strategy added under Policies and 
Strategies and, Capital Strategy under Resources on page 13

A robust suite of Key Performance Indicators was being developed and future 
reports would be presented indicating the Council’s performance in the delivery of its 
Corporate Plan.

During the discussion, the Committee’s comments and matters raised included the 
following:-

 the Corporate Plan document was generally welcomed and felt to be easy to 
read. 

 Vision – the recognition of South Ribble was felt to be by those beyond the 
locality/neighbouring area.

 Working in Partnership – there was no reference to Parish & Town Councils 
who were felt to be important element of partnership/stakeholder working in 
local communities. 

 Key Outcomes – starting from a baseline the Council aimed to be above the 
national average and as the average rose, the outcomes would also and be 
stretched. The associated performance indicators were being developed. 

Page 22



3

Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

 Health Inequalities – whilst overall life expectancy in the Borough was above 
the national average, there were areas where it was lower with poorer general 
health which needed to be addressed. When the Committee received updates 
on performance data it would monitor the amount of progress in narrowing the 
gap. 

 Delivery Plan – whilst this currently had no measurable objectives/milestones 
an assurance was given that the future performance indicators to be used 
would provide a measure of success.

 Surplus Sites – the Committee was informed that there were currently no 
details but the aim was to make better use of Council assets to support the 
Corporate Plan and any future detailed proposals would be considered by the 
Cabinet. The Committee was still keen to receive the earlier Cushman and 
Wakefield report. Also to understand how that report had been used.

 Plain English – the Committee sought and received clarification of the 
Resources statement on page 14 of the Corporate Plan document.  In that the 
identified capital and revenue resources would be aligned to support the 
identified projects.   

 Leisure Contract – the Committee was advised that as the current contract 
expired in 2021 a review/negotiations needed to start very soon.  It was also 
currently not clear how far the proposed Campus approach would have 
progressed.  It was assured that all projects in the Corporate Plan would have 
milestones and timescales.

 Child & Fuel Poverty – it was not clear to what extent a revised Council Tax 
Support Scheme and/or implementing Living Wage reforms for Council staff 
would address this programme and the Committee wondered if the Council 
was being ambitious enough. It was informed that the Corporate Plan 
identified realistic deliverable projects for Year 1 and from Year 2 other 
projects could be looked at.

 Programmes/Projects: Cabinet Lead – whilst acknowledging that certain 
programmes/projects would come under more than one portfolio, one portfolio 
holder needed to take ownership.  

RESOLVED (Unanimously) that the Committee:

1. welcomes the new format and layout of the Corporate Plan and Corporate 
Risk Register;

2. asks that consideration be given to how and who would measure the 
Council’s Vision nationally; 

3. suggests that Parish and Town Councils be identified as a partner/consultee 
in the Corporate Plan;

4. looks forward to reviewing outcomes to ensure they are ambitious and 
measurable;

5. would particularly welcome the strengthening of the outcomes to address 
health inequalities;

6. looks forward to milestones and timescales being added to the Corporate 
Plan;

7. be provided with the Cushman and Wakefield report along with an 
explanation of how it was used by the Council;

8. requests a greater use of plain English in future reports to Scrutiny;
9. asks for a timetable for the review of the leisure contract;
10. requests that further thought be given in the Corporate Plan to the child and 

fuel poverty programme; and

Page 23



4

Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

11.requests that one Cabinet portfolio lead take responsibility for a 
programme/project.

40 Third Quarter's Performance Report

The Committee considered the report of the Interim Corporate Improvement
Manager which provided an overview of performance against the Council’s
Corporate Plan 2017/18 for the third quarter ending at the end of December 2017.  
This also included details of the corporate risks and controls in place to mitigate risks 
in the Corporate Risk Register.

The report set out the details of the 34 performance indicators and 27 corporate plan 
activities and a commentary on the performance made against each indicator and 
activity. Also for the first time the report included at Appendix 2, the performance of 
the Council’s current services shared with Chorley Borough Council. 

During the discussion, the Committee’s comments/enquiries included the following 
areas:

 health and safety (accident reporting) – there had been one reportable 
accident in Quarter 3, and health and safety was a standing item at 
Leadership Team meetings

 increased number of complaints received by the Council – it was felt that 
following the recent adoption of the Council’s Customer Feedback Policy 
more complaints (rather than requests for service) were being captured.  
However, this did not include the category of complaint

 housing framework (extra care funding) – the funding from the County Council 
had stopped and rather than just looking to replace this, South Ribble Council 
was exploring other ways to provide those facilities in the borough

 improve the empty property target – whilst not a large issue in South Ribble 
the revised/refreshed housing framework had been approved with priorities 
and projects which included reducing the number of empty properties

 property and investment performance – whilst acknowledging this was 
disappointing, steps had been taken which included the adoption of the new 
Investment Strategy, including this as a priority in the Council’s new 
Corporate Plan, and other types of investment such as commercialisation of 
the Civic Suite and Worden Park

 delivery of the Leyland, Lostock Hall and Penwortham Masterplans – it was 
understood these plans had been adopted by City Deal and had been 
included in Year 1 of the Council’s new Corporate Plan

 explanation of the shared services performance information – it was 
understood the figures related to projected and actual allocation of work but 
the reason(s) why South Ribble’s performance figures were red was not 
available at the meeting

 environmental management  risk – initially it  was thought that there would be 
an impact on frontline staff due to reduced funding.  However, this had been 
mitigated with a new business model, management re-structure and proposed 
changes to shared services

 welfare reform – pockets of deprivation had been identified in the Council’s 
new Corporate Plan and the aim was to do what it could to reduce the level of 
deprivation   

RESOLVED (Unanimously): 

Page 24



5

Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

That the Committee expresses the following comments for consideration by the 
Cabinet whilst considering this item on 1 March 2018, that

(a) in respect of complaints received it would be helpful if these were 
categorised and indicate how lessons have been learned;

(b) the Committee strongly requests that it is kept informed with clear 
timelines on the delivery of the master plans for Leyland, Lostock Hall and 
Penwortham; and

(c) future reports on shared service performance provide more explanation on 
the performance figures, including differences between those for Chorley 
and South Ribble councils.

41 Progress Report on Worden Hall

The Planning Manager and the South Ribble Partnership Manager addressed and 
responded to the Committee’s enquiries relating to an update on the investment into 
Worden and proposals to bring Worden Hall back into use.

Whilst informed that it was proposed to engage further consultants, the Committee 
was assured that unlike before, this time there would be a specific brief and they 
would then inform the Council what it needed to do to make the venue commercially 
viable. 

The Committee was keen for this project (and that for the Civic Suite) to keep 
moving and not drift. It was informed that for the next meeting, the update would 
include the Consultants’ Brief, details of the proposed Artisan Market in April and the 
Council’s approved priorities and budgets.

RESOLVED (Unanimously):

That the Committee looks forward to receiving the next progress report at its next 
meeting.

42 Scrutiny Matters

42a Scrutiny Review of the Banqueting Suite

The Committee was updated on the review of the Banqueting Suite and it was 
intended to present a report to the meeting of the Committee on 8 March 2018.

RESOLVED (Unanimously): that

1. the update be noted; and
2. it was confirmed that the membership of the Committee’s review consisted of: 

Councillors Susan Jones (Chair), Colin Coulton, Michael Green, Keith Martin, 
Mick Titherington, Matthew Tomlinson and Karen Walton.

42
b

Verbal update on Lancashire County Council's Health Scrutiny Committee

The Chair had been unable to attend the recent meeting due to an engagement 
clash. The substantive item discussed had been proposals to address delays in 
hospital discharges. 

Page 25



6

Scrutiny Committee Thursday 8 February 2018

42c Member feedback on meeting(s) and training attended on behalf of the 
committee

The Committee appreciated the recent Member Learning Hour explaining the 
Council’s Corporate Risk Register.  It was advised that the next session on 21 
February 2018 included the use of Councillors’ tablets and ModGov (access to 
online agendas/minutes).

It was reported that the Council’s involvement in the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment had been submitted to the Local Area Research & Intelligence 
Association. It was possible it could receive an award for partnership working.

42
d

Scrutiny Committee Forward Plan

The Committee was informed that its next meeting would include an update from the 
Interim Licensing Manager on the Council’s Licensing Function.

42e Cabinet Forward Plan

The Committee noted the Cabinet’s Forward Plan.

Chair Date

Page 26



Cabinet Wednesday 14 February 2018

DRAFT
MINUTES OF CABINET

MEETING DATE Wednesday, 14 February 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillors Peter Mullineaux (Chair), Colin Clark (Vice-Chair), 
Jacqui Mort, Phil Smith, Susan Snape and Graham Walton

OFFICERS: Heather McManus (Chief Executive), Dave Whelan (Legal 
Services Manager/Monitoring Officer) and Andy Houlker 
(Senior Democratic Services Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS 
AND OFFICERS:

Councillor William Evans, Councillor Derek Forrest, Councillor 
Mary Green, Councillor Michael Green, Councillor Jon Hesketh, 
Councillor Susan Jones JP, Councillor Keith Martin, Councillor 
Michael Titherington (Mayor), Councillor Matthew Tomlinson, 
Councillor Karen Walton, Councillor Paul Wharton, Jane 
Blundell (Deputy Section 151 Officer), Joanne Platt (Interim 
Corporate Improvement Manager), Tracy Boustead (Interim HR 
and OD Officer), Darren Cranshaw (Scrutiny & Performance 
Manager), Rebecca Heap (Senior Community Works Officer), 
Noel O'Neill (Interim Consultant) and Andrew Richardson 
(Parks & Neighbourhoods Manager)

PUBLIC: 2

76 Apologies for Absence

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Hughes.

77 Minutes of the Last Meeting

RESOLVED (Unanimously):

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2018 be approved and signed 
as a correct record.

78 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

79 Corporate Planning (Corporate Plan, Risk Management, 2018/19 Budget 
and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS))

79a Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and Corporate Risk Register 2018-19

The Interim Corporate Improvement Manager addressed the Cabinet and presented 
for approval the Council’s new Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 and the Corporate Risk 
Register for 2018-2019.

Page 27

Agenda Item 5c



2

Cabinet Wednesday 14 February 2018

This followed extensive consultation on future priorities with residents, businesses, 
partners and members of the council. The outcome had been used to inform the 
development of a new vision for the Borough and the Council and new corporate 
priorities for the period 2018-2023. These were set out in a new Corporate Plan for 
2018-2023 (Appendix 1 to the report). 

A new Corporate Risk Register for 2018-19 had also been developed. This identified 
the risks to achieving the corporate objectives and the actions to mitigate those risks 
(Appendix 2 to the report). 

The Scrutiny Committee had considered and made recommendations on the 
Corporate Plan at its meeting on 8 February 2018.

Decision Made (Unanimously) that:

1. Cabinet welcomes any comments on the draft Corporate Plan arising from the 
meeting of the Scrutiny Committee held on the 8 February 2018 and will 
consider how these can be reflected in the document presented to Council;

2. subject to (1) above Cabinet recommends the Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 
attached at Appendix 1 to Council for approval; and

3. Cabinet recommends the Corporate Risk Register for 2018-19 attached at 
Appendix 2 to Council for approval.

Reasons for the Decision:

The paramount importance of the Corporate Plan (and associated Risk Register) 
was clear as it set out a Vision and the Corporate Priorities for the Council.  Also the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was aligned to the Corporate 
Plan to enable delivery of the Council’s ambitions and services for residents.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

Option 1: Roll forward the existing corporate priorities for a further year. As these 
have not been refreshed for a number of years, this option is not recommended. 

Option 2: Do nothing but this will leave the Council without a current Corporate Plan 
for 2018 and beyond and is therefore not recommended.

79
b

Capital Strategy

The Deputy Section 151 Officer presented the Council’s five year Capital Strategy 
2018/19 to 2022/23 and how it was funded. The implications of the strategy were 
reflected in the Council’s 2018/9 Budget and the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS).  The strategy was an ambitious and deliverable key part of the Council’s 
Corporate Planning process setting out the major capital expenditure to deliver its 
ambitions and services for residents.

It was acknowledged that Penwortham Holme had suffered from flooding and other 
issues and it was confirmed that remedial works were programmed in 2017/8. 

Page 28



3

Cabinet Wednesday 14 February 2018

Decision Made (Unanimously) that:

1. Cabinet approves the Capital Strategy detailed in Appendix 1 and recommend 
its approval to Council;

2. Cabinet approves the funding arrangements for the Capital Strategy and 
recommend its approval to Council;

3. Cabinet notes the implications of using debt to fund the Strategy and the 
implications of future revenue budgets; and

4. Cabinet agrees to the implications of the Capital Strategy being incorporated 
into the Corporate Risk Register.

Reasons for the Decision:

The report was part of the overall financial strategy for the Council for the next 5 
years that would enable delivery of the Corporate Plan ambitions. It sets out a clear 
affordable programme and the revenue implications were part of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy to be recommended to Council.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

There was no alternative, to support the Corporate Plan the Council needed to have 
a Capital Strategy in place.

79c 2018/19 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

Further to Minute Nos.79(a) and 79(b) above, the Deputy Section 151 Officer 
presented the proposed 2018/19 Revenue Budget for the Council and the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) for the next 5 years.  This was the financial plan for 
the Council for the next 5 years. It was aligned to and supported the Corporate Plan 
and accounted for the implications of the Capital Strategy in delivering the Council’s 
ambitions and services for residents.

It was explained that in part the new approach followed major changes in local 
authority finance.  One implication of this had been that this Council no longer 
received a revenue grant from Central Government.

A considerable amount of work had been carried out on Business Rate Retention 
and it was considered that the figures included in the budget were accurate.  

In respect of the Council’s Management Re-structure, it was confirmed that the 
figure in the report was correct for Year 1 with further savings in Year 2. 

It was confirmed that the Council did not have performance related pay.  

Decision Made (Unanimously) that:

1. Cabinet approves the revenue budget for 2018/19 as set out in Appendix A; 
2. Cabinet approves the 5 year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

2018/19 through to 2022/23, summarised at Appendix B; and
3. Cabinet recommends to Council a Council Tax increase of 2.99%. 

Page 29



4

Cabinet Wednesday 14 February 2018

Reasons for the Decision:

The Council has a statutory obligation to set a balanced budget and this was 
reflected in the report.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

There was not alternative as Cabinet was under a legal duty to prepare and agree 
budget proposals which then must be referred to full Council for its consideration. 
The budget had been set with reference to all relevant legal requirements set out in 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and all other related legislation, statutory 
instruments and regulations.

80 Treasury Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

The Deputy Section 151 Officer presented the Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
and Treasury Management and Investment Strategies for 2018/19 to 2022/23, and 
the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement for 2018/19. The Treasury Strategy was 
aligned to the Capital Strategy and its delivery within the Council’s ambitious 
Corporate Plan. Whilst there were anticipated changes to the requirements by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), the Council was 
currently fully compliant.  

Decision Made (Unanimously):

That Council be recommended to approve

 the Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 to 2022/23 in paragraphs 9.2, 9.3, 
9.5, and 9.6.

 the annual Minimum Revenue Policy (MRP) statement in paragraph 9.4.
 the Treasury Strategy, and Treasury Indicators for 2018/19 to 2022/23 in 

paragraphs 10.6, 10.7 and 11.4.
 the Annual Investment Strategy including Investment Counterparties in 

section 11.

Reasons for the Decision:

The Treasury Strategy and associated documents are designed to ensure 
compliance with all relevant regulations and statutory codes of practice.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

No alternative as the Treasury Strategy ensures the Council complies with the 
requirements for good governance procedures for self-regulation as set out in the 
CIPFA Prudential code and Treasury Management Code of Practice. These have 
been in place since April 2004, following the Local Government Act 2003 which 
introduced a new system of capital expenditure and borrowing.

Chair Date

Page 30



1 
 

REPORT TO ON 

      Council 28th February 2018 

September 2017 

 
TITLE 

 
REPORT OF 

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and Corporate Risk Register 2018-19 
Interim Corporate 

Improvement Manager 

 
 

 
Is this report a KEY DECISION (i.e. more than £100,000 or 
impacting on more than 2 Borough wards?) 
 
Is this report on the Statutory Forward Plan? 
 
Is this report confidential? 

 
Yes 
 
 
Yes 
 
No  
 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT   
 
1.1 To seek approval of the Council’s Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 and the Corporate Risk 
 Register for 2018-2019. 
 

 
2. CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended: 

(i) That Council approves the Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 attached at Appendix 1  
 
(ii) That Council approves the Corporate Risk Register for 2018-19 attached at 

Appendix 2  
 

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 

The report relates to the following existing corporate priorities. However, if approved, the 
corporate priorities for 2018-2023 will change to those in the new Corporate Plan. 
 

 
Clean, green and safe 
 

 
 
Strong and healthy communities 

 

 
Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire 
 

 
 
Efficient, effective and exceptional 
council 

 

 
4. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Council’s existing Corporate Plan is for the period 2017-18 and contained an action to 

consult with residents, businesses and other stakeholders to develop priorities for the next 3-

years. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

 

4.2 Consultation on future priorities with residents, businesses and partners took place during 

2017 and members’ views on priorities were also sought at two extended Member Learning 

Hours which took place in July and November 2017. 

 

4.3 The outcome of this consultation has been used to inform the development of a new vision 

for the Borough and the Council and new corporate priorities for the period 2018-2023. 

These have been set out in a new Corporate Plan for 2018-2023 (Appendix 1) 

 

4.4 A new corporate risk register for 2018-19 has also been developed. This identifies the risks 

to achievement of our corporate objectives and the actions we will take to mitigate those 

risks (Appendix 2). 

 
5. CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2023 
 
5.1 The Corporate Plan articulates a new vision for the Council - that ‘South Ribble is and 

continues to be recognised nationally as the best place in the UK’.  
  

This means a place where people can afford to live, that has access to high quality schools, 
colleges and employment opportunities for everyone  and a place where people choose to 
live because it is safe and has lots of high-quality clean, green space for people to enjoy in 
their leisure time.  

 
We also want South Ribble to be a place where businesses choose to invest because they 
have access to a highly skilled and motivated population seeking high quality employment 
opportunities.  

 
The key outcomes that underpin our vision are set out below: 
 

 Healthy life expectancy rate is above the national average 

 Above national average for access to affordable homes 

 High employment rate 

 School attainment and adult skills are above the national averages 

 People feel safe in South Ribble  

 Resident satisfaction is above national average  

 
5.2 The Corporate Plan also sets out a vision for the sort of Council we want to be - a Council 

that is recognised for being innovative, forward thinking and financially self-sufficient, 
whilst putting people at the heart of everything we do. 

 
5.3 These two visions are underpinned by three new Corporate Priorities for the Council for 

2018-2023, which in turn are underpinned by our people - our staff and elected members 
working alongside our communities. 

 
5.4 The three new corporate priorities for 2018-2023 are set out below: 
 

 Excellence and financial sustainability 

 Health and wellbeing 

 Place 

 
5.5 Each of these priorities is underpinned by a 5-year programme of work, and the key projects 

we will deliver in the first of these 5-years are set out in Section 9 of the Plan. 
 

Page 32



3 
 

5.6 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and the Capital Programme for 2018-23 have 
been aligned to the new Corporate Plan to ensure that resources are in place to deliver the key 
projects. 

 
5.7  When the plan has been approved, Operational Service Plans will be aligned to the 2018-19 

Delivery Plan. These will provide milestones for each of the key projects to be delivered in 
2018-19. 

 
5.8 A suite of key performance indicators (KPIs) and targets will also be developed to enable 

success to be monitored and measured. 
 
5.9 Progress against the project milestones and the KPI targets will be monitored by the Council’s 

Leadership Team each quarter. Progress will be reported to elected members (via Scrutiny 
Committee and Cabinet) in Quarters 2, 3 and 4.  

 
An Annual Report will be provided to Full Council at the end of Quarter 4 (i.e. in June 2019 
and each year thereafter). 
 

6. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 2018-2019 
 
6.1 A new corporate risk register for 2018-2019 (Appendix 2) has been developed for approval 

alongside the Corporate Plan. The risk register identifies the key strategic risks to 

achievement of the corporate priorities and in each case, identifies mitigating actions that will 

be taken to reduce these risks. 

7. CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT AND OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 Consultation with residents on future priorities took place in February 2017.  
 
7.2 The outcome of that consultation was used to inform the development of a new vision for the 

Borough and for the Council and members’ views on these draft visions were sought at an 
extended Member Learning Hour in July 2017. 

 

7.3 Consultation with businesses on future priorities took place in August 2017 and consultation 
with partners on future priorities took place in early September 2017. 

 
7.4 The Cabinet used the outcome of this consultation to develop the three new corporate 

priorities and the new Corporate Plan for the period 2018-2023. 
 

7.5 Members’ views on the corporate priorities, outcomes and key work programmes associated 
with them were sought at an extended Member Learning Hour in November 2017. 

 

7.6 The outcome of that consultation was used to finalise the Corporate Plan now submitted for 
approval.  

 
7.7 Further consultation on the new priorities took place with residents (via the Council’s 
 website), with partners (via the South Ribble Partnership Board) and with businesses (via a 
 business breakfast meeting) in late January and early February. 
 
7.8 The Council’s Scrutiny Committee considered the Corporate Plan at its meeting on 8th 

February. The plan was welcomed by the Committee who made a number of 
recommendations to the Cabinet. Those recommendations were accepted by the Cabinet 
and the plan has been amended to reflect those recommendations. 

 
 
 

Page 33



4 
 

8. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
8.1 Option 1: Roll forward the existing corporate priorities for a further year. As these have not 

been refreshed  for a number of years, this option is not recommended. 
 
8.2 Option 2: Do nothing but this will leave the Council without a current Corporate Plan for 
 2018 and beyond and is therefore not recommended. 

 
9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The financial implications of the Corporate Plan are set out in the Medium-term Financial 

Strategy and Capital Programme for 2018-23 which is also submitted to this meeting for 
consideration.  
 

10. HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Staff resources will be aligned to delivering the new priorities contained within the 
 Corporate Plan. . 
 
11. ICT/TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 ICT is a key enabler and as such ICT resources and plans will be aligned to the delivery of 
 the new Corporate Plan. 
 
12. PROPERTY AND ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 Property and assets are key enablers and as such will be aligned to the delivery of 
 the new Corporate Plan. 

 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
13.1 Risks to the achievement of the corporate priorities are set out in the Corporate Risk 
 Register for 2018-19, together with the controls and actions we will take to mitigate risk. 

 
14. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT 
 
14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment on the new Corporate Plan has been undertaken (Appendix 

3). As the Corporate Plan has been developed specifically to address the needs of the 
Borough, there is no adverse impact on any particular group or groups. As projects identified 
in the Corporate Plan are developed further, equality impact assessments will be undertaken 
as appropriate at that time. 

 

15. COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER 
 
16.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is the financial plan for the Council for the 

next 5 years. This MTFS has been aligned to the Corporate Plan and therefore 
incorporates the financial implications of delivering the Council’s ambitions and services for 
residents as set out in the Corporate Plan. 

 
16. COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
16.1 The importance of the Corporate Plan (and associated Risk Register) can hardly be 

overstated. A vision for the council is articulated and corporate priorities identified. Clearly 
crucial to the development of this work is effective consultation. Paragraph 7 of the report 
sets out the extensive consultation that has been carried out. There are no legal 
concerns/issues with this report. 

Page 34



5 
 

 
17. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 

Residents Survey February 2017 
Business Survey August 2017 
Appendix 1: Corporate Plan 2018-2023 
Appendix 2: Corporate Risk Register 2018-2023 
Appendix 3: Equality Impact Assessment dated 19th January 2018 

 
 

Joanne Platt 
Interim Corporate Improvement Manager  
 

 
Report Author: 
 

 
Telephone: 

 
Date: 

 
Joanne Platt 
 

 
01772 625454 

 
16th February 2018 

 
 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



    

1 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

 

 

Corporate Plan 2018-23 

 

 
 

Appendix 1 

P
age 37



    

2 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Page No 

Section 1: Foreword by the Leader of the Council   2 

Section 2: Where we are today      3 

Section 3: Moving towards 2023: Our vision for the future  4 

Section 4: Working in partnership     4 

Section 5: Our Priorities:       5 

5.1 Excellence and financial sustainability   7 

5.2 Health and wellbeing      8 

5.3 Place         9 

 

Section 6: Our People        11

  

Section 7: Statutory services and business transformation  12 

 

Section 8: Managing performance     12 

 

Section 9: Delivery plan for 2018-19     13 

 

 

Section 1: Foreword  

I am delighted to present South Ribble Council’s Corporate Plan 

for 2018-23.  

As an organisation, we have continued to respond to the needs and 

aspirations of our communities and in 2017 were voted as the best place to 

live in the UK. However, like all public services, we are facing significant 

budgetary challenges and unprecedented pressure to become financially 

self-sufficient by 2019-20, whilst continuing to meet demand for services and 

the aspirations of residents, businesses, partners and other stakeholders. 

In 2018, we will therefore change the way we are organised and do 

business. This means playing a full and active role in place shaping, 

becoming a more agile organisation and taking an entrepreneurial 

approach to everything we do. 

This plan sets out our Vison for the Borough and for the Council and our 

priorities for the next five-years.  

It sets out the outcomes we want to see for local people and the things we 

will do to bring this about. It is underpinned by a delivery plan for the first 

year (2018-19) and will be refreshed each year to set out the delivery plan 

for the following year. 

I want to thank all our staff and members for their continued hard work and 

commitment over recent challenging times. Our record of achievement is 

something to be proud of and I know that we will continue to serve the 

people and communities of South Ribble to the very best of our abilities. 

Cllr Peter Mullineaux 

Leader of the Council 

 

 

 

P
age 38



    

3 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 2: Where we are today 

During 2017, we consulted with residents, businesses and partners on priorities for 

the Borough and we also undertook a desk top review of recent national data to 

determine what the priorities for South Ribble should be. In summary, this tells us 

that South Ribble has: 

 A growing population with predicted growth in the number of households  

 Relatively low levels of deprivation, albeit with pockets of need 

 A population with relatively good health, although we do have an ageing 

population 

 An above average skills base and relatively low unemployment  

 Good schools and colleges and access to jobs  

 Good transport links – but relatively high traffic congestion  

 Lots of green space and villages and award winning parks 

 Housing that is affordable to most – but the challenge is to sustain a balanced 

housing market 

 Above average resident satisfaction with services and the Council – but lower 

than average satisfaction with sports and leisure facilities 

The Council has recently been through some challenging times and we are 

addressing a period of instability which has impacted on staff morale and our 

ability to govern over the past 2-years.  

We started a journey in 2017 with an ambitious Transformation Strategy aimed at 

making the Council more agile and entrepreneurial, delivering change at pace 

and empowering our people to be innovative in delivering services.  

 

 

The vision and priorities we have developed for the Borough and for the 

Council for the next five-years seek to address the areas where outcomes 

need to improve for local people, communities and businesses. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 39



    

4 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 3: Moving towards 2023: Our vision for the future 

Our vision for the Borough is set out below. 

‘South Ribble is and continues to be recognised nationally as the best 

place in the UK’.  

We also have a vision for the sort of Council we want to be - a Council that is 

recognised for being innovative, forward thinking and financially self-

sufficient, whilst putting people at the heart of everything we do. 

What will success look like? 

Our definition of the best place to live is a place where people can afford to 

live, that has access to high quality schools, colleges and employment 

opportunities for everyone  and a place where people choose to live because 

it is safe and has lots of high-quality clean, green space for people to enjoy in 

their leisure time.  

We also want South Ribble to be a place where businesses choose to invest 

because they have access to a highly skilled and motivated population seeking 

high quality employment opportunities.  

The key outcomes that underpin our vision are set out below: 

 Healthy life expectancy rate is above the national average 

 Above national average for access to affordable homes 

 High employment rate 

 School attainment and adult skills are above the national averages 

 People feel safe in South Ribble  

 Resident satisfaction is above national average  

 

 

 

Section 4: Working in partnership  

The Council works collaboratively with a wide range of public sector 

agencies and businesses and seeks to improve outcomes for local people 

and communities through having a strong voice for South Ribble.  

The key partnerships that support delivery of the priorities in this plan are set 

out below. 

South Ribble Partnership brings together people from across the public 

sector, businesses and voluntary and community organisations with an aim 

to deliver better services in South Ribble, based on what local people want.  

 

The Council has a unique role to play in this partnership, as it has a 

democratic mandate to represent its communities within the Borough. We 

therefore take a leading role in the partnership’s work and are able to use 

this mandate to influence the partnership’s priorities.  

 

We will provide strong leadership on this going forward to make sure we 

maximise the collective resources of the partnership and the partners for 

the benefit of South Ribble communities and residents and can therefore 

make an impact even on things that we don’t have direct responsibility for 

such as health services and policing. 

 

 
 

P
age 40



    

5 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

 

South Ribble Community Leisure Trust is responsible for the management of 

the Council’s leisure facilities and plays a critical role in supporting the 

health and well-being of our residents. They do this through developing 

active lifestyles, enhancing facility provision, raising the profile of sport and 

active leisure and supporting community sport. 

 

Central Lancashire health and wellbeing partnership is building strong and 

effective links between Preston, Chorley and South Ribble Councils, the NHS 

bodies, Lancashire County Council, the Voluntary Community and Faith 

Sector and other public bodies to improve local people's health and 

wellbeing. 

 

Lancashire Enterprise Partnership is a creative collaboration of leaders from 

business, universities and local councils, who direct economic growth and 

drive job creation in Lancashire 

 

Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal is an initiative developed by 

partners and supported by central government which will transform Central 

Lancashire, creating thousands of new jobs and homes, while increasing 

the size of the local economy by £1 billion.  

 

Lancashire County Council is a key partner as it is responsible for many of 

the services that are crucial to South Ribble people and its communities 

such as highways, transport, schools, children and adult social care. 

In addition to these key strategic partnerships, the six parish councils and 

one town council in South Ribble act on behalf of the communities they 

represent, giving views on behalf of the community on planning 

applications and other proposals that affect the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

P
age 41



    

6 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 5: Our priorities for 2018-23 
 

Underpinning our vision are three priorities as shown below. We will deliver 

these with our people – our staff and elected members working alongside 

our communities. 

 

This plan sets out the things we will do to make our vision a reality and how 

we will measure success. 

 

 

 

As a district council, there are many things we cannot do ourselves, but we 

can help to influence the priorities of partners. The activities we have 

identified in this plan are therefore broken down into those we will deliver 

ourselves, those we will deliver in partnership and those where we will 

influence the work of others through strong political leadership. 

The Council’s elected members will play a crucial role in this. They will ensure 

that South Ribble’s voice is heard at meetings of our key strategic 

partnerships so that partnership plans reflect the priorities of our Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Place

Health and 
wellbeing

Excellence 
and financial 
sustainabilityP

age 42



    

7 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

5.1: Excellence and financial sustainability 

Our focus will be on income generation, including through investment 

opportunities and returns from assets. 

Our ambitious Transformation Strategy cuts across all services and 

activities, focusing on customer centric services, efficient, effective and 

innovative ways of working whilst driving a cultural shift throughout the 

whole Council.  

Outcomes:  

 High resident satisfaction 

 Financial self-sufficiency through investment and commercial use of 

Council owned assets 

 

 

 
 

What we will do: 

Programme 
Deliver or 

influence 
Lead 

Council investment Portfolio Deliver 
Cabinet member 

for Corporate 

Support & Assets 

Transformation * Deliver 
Cabinet member 

for Corporate 

Support & Assets 

New business models 

including shared services 
Deliver 

Cabinet member 

for Corporate 

Support & Assets 

 

* cross cutting across all activities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 43



    

8 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

5.2: Health and wellbeing 

Our focus will be on well-being for all for the future health of our 

growing population, dementia and supporting our ageing 

population with limited mobility.  

Developing and maintaining active lifestyles is a key building block for 

health and well-being. It plays a crucial role in improving health as 

well as preventing poor health in the future.   

Through our provision of facilities, open and active spaces and 

services, we can support and encourage sport and physical activity 

for residents of all ages and abilities. This is therefore an important 

priority for us.   

As a district council, our role in improving health services is largely one 

of influencing and working collaboratively with others in the borough, 

the sub-region and the region, but we will do this to the best of our 

ability to ensure the priorities of our partners are aligned to our own.  

This includes supporting the work of others to address child and fuel 

poverty and mental health issues where we can, for instance through 

our work in relation to housing and homelessness and our work with 

businesses to reduce unemployment and improve access to high-

level jobs, all of which we know have an impact on these things. 

We will also strengthen our approach to how we support volunteers, 

recognising and capitalising on the strengths of residents and 

communities to be resilient and to support themselves and each 

other. 

We will seek to narrow the gap between the most and the least 

affluent communities and to reduce the health inequalities that exist 

in the Borough. 

 

Outcomes:  

 Increased satisfaction with access to and cleanliness of open 

 spaces 

 Increased satisfaction with sports and leisure facilities in the 

 Borough 

 Increase in the percentage of people in South Ribble who engage 

 in more than 3 hours of physical activity per week 

 Increase in healthy life expectancy 

 Improved access to community health services 

 Reduction in the number of people who are homeless 

 Recognition as a Dementia Friendly Borough  

 Close the gap between the least and the most deprived areas in the 

 Borough – fewer people will be classed as deprived  

 Reduction in the health inequalities that exist in the Borough 

 By 2023, air quality in South Ribble will have improved 

 

 

 

 

P
age 44



    

9 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

What we will do 

Programme 

 

Deliver or 

influence 

 

Lead 

Health, leisure and wellbeing 

campus model including 

community health services 

Deliver in 

partnership 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & Leisure 

Homelessness and independent 

living support 

Deliver in 

partnership 

Cabinet member for 

Corporate Support & 

Assets 

Support for communities and 

volunteering 

Deliver in 

partnership 
Leader 

Social isolation and loneliness 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety & 

Wellbeing 

 

Lancashire Mental Health 

Strategy 
Influence 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety & 

Wellbeing 

 

Borough-wide Air Quality Plan 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety & 

Wellbeing 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 45



    

10 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

5.3: Place 

Our focus will be on neighbourhoods and town centres, economic 

growth (including jobs, housing, transport and infrastructure) and 

place promotion 

Business stability is key and we will support a mixed economy where 

large and small businesses have equal opportunities to thrive.  

Outcomes 

 Increase in the number of large, medium, small and micro 

enterprises in the Borough 

 Increase in employment numbers in the Borough 

 Further improve skills 

 Increase in the number of higher-level jobs 

 More homes of the quality and mix to meet needs 

 

 

What we will do 

 

Programme 

 

Deliver or 

influence 

 

 

Lead 

Cuerden strategic site 
Deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Strategic Planning & 

Housing  

 

 

Central Lancashire Core 

Strategy and South Ribble 

Local Plan 

 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

Partnership 
 

 

Cabinet Member for 

Strategic Planning 

and Housing 

 

City Deal and Plan for 

Successor Programmes 

 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

Partnership 

 

 

Leader 

 

Economic Strategy: support for 

existing as well as new 

businesses 

 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure 

 

Housing Framework : delivery 

of a balanced housing market  

 

 

Deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Strategic Planning & 

Housing 

 

 

Place promotion 

 

 

Deliver  

 

Leader  
 

 

My Neighbourhood Plans 

 

Deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure 

 

P
age 46



    

11 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

 

Programme 

 

Deliver or 

influence 

 

 

Lead 

 

River Ribble Master Planning 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure  

 

Raising community aspirations 

in relation to growth and 

improvements in the Borough 

 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

Leader 

 

Renewable energy 

 

Deliver 

 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety 

& Wellbeing 

 

 

 

  

P
age 47



    

12 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 6: Our People 

Our biggest resource is our people. This means our workforce and our 

elected members working alongside local people and communities 

for the benefit of the Borough. Our people are therefore also a priority 

as they underpin everything we do. 

We want all our people to be proud to be a part of South Ribble and 

will therefore focus on supporting existing staff and elected members 

to be the best they can be, raising aspirations and being an employer 

and a Council of choice for both prospective staff and prospective 

Councillors.  

Outcomes 

 More apprentices of all ages in the Council and in the Borough 

 Increase in levels of staff satisfaction 

 Increase in the level of member satisfaction 

 

 

What we will do 

Programme 

 

Deliver or 

influence 

 

Lead 

Apprentices 

Influence & 

deliver in 

partnership 

Leader 

Leadership Development  Deliver  Leader 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 48



    

13 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 7: Statutory services and business transformation 

We have big ambitions in this plan for improving our Borough and the quality 

of lives of all our residents and communities.  

However, our staff also work hard every day delivering a wide range of 

services that amount to ‘business as usual’. This includes waste collection, 

keeping our streets and our parks and open spaces clean and well 

maintained, public protection and safeguarding through our environmental 

health, planning, building control and licensing services and providing 

advice on council tax benefits and homelessness prevention. 

Our Gateway staff are the first point of contact with the Council for many, 

dealing with enquiries over the telephone or over the counter at our offices 

and staff also manage the Council’s buildings and other assets, ensuring 

they are safe for both visitors and staff, as well as managing the Council’s 

financial and legal affairs and governance arrangements.  

Our business transformation programme will look at all these services on an 

on-going basis to ensure they continue to be as efficient and effective as 

possible, providing access to high-quality services on time every time.    

 

 

Section 8: Policy framework and performance management 

The diagram below shows how this Plan fits with the Council’s overall policy 

framework.  

Progress in delivering this plan will be monitored through the Council’s 

performance management framework. Reports will be considered by the 

Council’s Cabinet and its Scrutiny Committee and an annual report will be 

presented to the meeting of the Full Council in July each year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regional and sub-regional plans 

Sustainable Community Strategy 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

Policies & 

strategies 

Local Plan 

Economic Strategy 

Housing Strategy 

Homelessness 

Strategy 

Lancashire Mental 

Health Strategy 

Investment 

Strategy 

Resources 

Budget and MTFS 

Capital Strategy 

ICT 

People 

Property and 

assets 

P
age 49



    

14 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

Section 9: Delivery Plan for 2018-19 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

1 

 

Excellence & 

financial 

sustainability 

 

 

Programme: Council investment 

Portfolio 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Civic Centre and Worden Park Arts 

Centre commercialisation Phase 1 

(develop brief and soft market 

test) 

 

 Surplus sites disposals programme 

Phase 1 

 

 Develop business case for South 

Ribble Home Build proposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Borough Investment Fund (capital) 

 

 Alignment of existing property and 

strategic asset management 

capital funding 

 

 Alignment of existing strategic 

asset management revenue 

budgets and staff  

 

Cabinet member for 

Corporate Support & 

Assets 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Resources and 

Transformation) 

P
age 50



    

15 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

2 

 

Excellence & 

financial 

sustainability 

 

 

 

Programme: Transformation 

 

Project (s): 

 

 SOCITIM Review of ICT 

 

 Gateway Review 

 

 HR Going Digital Phase 1 

 

 Neighbourhood Teams 

transformation 

 

 Depot Commercialisation Phase 1  

 

 Implement Living Wage reforms for 

Council staff 

 

 

 Align existing transformation 

revenue budgets and staff 

 

 Transformation funding from 

general financial reserve 

 

Cabinet member for 

Corporate Support & 

Assets 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Resources and 

Transformation) 

3 

 

Programme: New business models 

including shared services 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Phase 1 of Shared Services with 

Chorley Council 

 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Corporate Support & 

Assets 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Resources and 

Transformation) 

 

 

P
age 51



    

16 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

4 

 

Health & 

wellbeing 

 

 

Programme: Health, leisure and 

wellbeing campus model including 

community health services 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Worden Park improvements 

 

 Design and seek planning 

permission for the first phases of 

borough green links 

 

 Open Space Sports & 

Recreation Assessment & 

Playing Pitch Strategy 

 

 Commence review of leisure 

contract  

 

 Design and seek planning 

permission for leisure campus 

plan 

 

 Develop options for artificial 

grass pitches  

 

 

 

 

 Re-alignment of existing capital 

reserves 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff i.e. Regeneration, Sports 

& Leisure Team, Sports 

Development in schools 

 

 Re-align sports pitch capital and 

revenue budgets 

 

 Borrowing 

 

 Partnership contributions 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 52



    

17 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

5 

 

Health & 

wellbeing 

 

 

 

 

Programme: Homelessness and 

independent living support 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Development of a Homelessness 

project to implement the new 

Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017. 

 

 Implement a project to deliver 

additional Independent living 

support to people living with a 

disability 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Align Disabled Facilities Grant and 

Private Sector Housing Grant 

capital funding 

 

 Align existing revenue budget and 

staff  

 

 External funding 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Corporate Support & 

Assets 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 53



    

18 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

6 

 

Health & 

wellbeing 

 

 

 

 

 

Programme: Support for 

communities and volunteering 

 

Project (s): 

 

 Adopt a revised Council Tax 

Support Scheme for 2019-20 

 

 Develop volunteering strategy 

and Compact for the 

voluntary, community and faith 

sector 

 

 Develop a volunteering 

framework to support people 

and communities to be resilient 

 

 

 South Ribble Partnership Manager  

 

 

Leader 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

7 

 

Programme: Social isolation and 

loneliness 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Deliver the key actions of the 

South Ribble Dementia Action 

Alliance 

 

 

 

 

 South Ribble Partnership Manager  

 

 
 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety 

& Wellbeing 

 

 

 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 54



    

19 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

8 

Health & 

wellbeing 

 

 

Programme: Lancashire Mental 

Health Strategy 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Completion of MH2K project 

 

 Workplace Based Health 

Checks Programme   

 

 

 South Ribble Partnership Manager  

 

  

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety 

& Wellbeing 

 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

 

9 

Health & 

wellbeing 

 

 

Programme: Deliver the Borough’s 

Air Quality Plan 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Completion of Air Quality 

Action Plan to raise awareness 

of air quality and solutions to 

improve air quality 

 

 

 Align existing capital funding 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff 

 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety 

& Wellbeing 

 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



    

20 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

 

 

 

 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

10 

 

 

 

Place 

 

 

Programme: Cuerden strategic site 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Implement Employment and 

Skills Plan 

 

 Progress Delivery of Phase 1 

and Plan for Future Phases 

 

 

 City Deal 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff 

 

Cabinet member for 

Strategic Planning & 

Housing  

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

11 

 

Programme: Central Lancashire 

Core Strategy and South Ribble 

Local Plan 

 

Project (s): 

 

 Commence review of Central 

Lancashire Local Plan 

 

 Commence review of South 

Ribble Local Plan 

 

 

 Establish Joint Programme Team to 

Coordinate and Deliver Central 

Lancashire Work. Share costs with 

Central Lancashire partners 

 

 Focus existing internal staff on 

South Ribble Local Plan review 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Strategic Planning & 

Housing 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 56



    

21 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

12 

 

Place 

 

 

Programme: City Deal and Plan for 

Successor Programmes 

 

Project (s) 

 

 Work with partners and 

developers to increase the rate of 

delivery of new homes and 

commercial floor space by 

unlocking City Deal sites  

 

 Deliver projects listed in the City 

Deal Business and Delivery Plan 

2017-20 

 
 Masterplans for Penwortham, 

Lostock Hall and Leyland town 

centres 

 

 

 City Deal 

 

 Homes and Communities Agency 

Capacity Fund 

Leader 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

13 

 

Programme: Economic Strategy: 

support for existing as well as new 

businesses 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Commence preparation of a 

Central Lancashire Economic 

Strategy 

 

 

 

 City Deal 

 

 Align existing Economic 

Development revenue budget 

and staff 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 57



    

22 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

14 

 

Place 

 

 

Programme: Housing Framework: 

delivery of a balanced housing 

market 

 

Project (s): 

 

 Private sector Stock Condition 

Survey 

 

 

 Align existing capital and revenue 

budgets and staff 

 
Cabinet member for 

Strategic Planning & 

Housing 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

15 

 

Programme: Place promotion 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Invest Central Lancashire and 

South Ribble Inward Investment 

Marketing Plan/Activity  

 

 Develop South Ribble 

Programme for festivals and 

events  

 

 South Ribble Ambassador 

programme 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Align existing Public Relations’ 

revenue budgets and staff 

 

 Align existing Economic 

Development revenue budgets 

and staff 

 

 Align existing Regeneration 

revenue budgets and staff 

 

 Align existing Neighbourhoods 

revenue budgets and staff 

Leader  

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 58



    

23 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

16 

Place 
 

 

Programme: My Neighbourhood 

Plans 

 
Project (s):  

 
 Community projects including 

WW1 Centenary with the 

McNamara VC memorial, Walton 

le Dale car park and New Longton 

Improvements 

 

 

 Align existing My Neighbourhoods 

capital budget  

 

 Align existing My Neighbourhoods 

revenue budgets and staff  

 

 City Deal 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure 
 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

17 

 

Programme: River Ribble Master 

planning 
 

Project (s):  
 

 Masterplan for River Ribble Green 

links joining river frontage to local 

amenities & wider network 

 

 Accessibility work including 

completion of Cross Borough Link 

Road 

 

 Progress development of a project 

for new Ribble Crossing (subject to 

HIF Funding being awarded) 

 

 Progress Delivery of Central 

Parks Masterplan 

 

 

 

 Align existing Regeneration and 

Neighbourhoods capital funding 
 
 Align existing Regeneration and 

Neighbourhoods revenue budgets 

and staff  
 
 Potential third party funding 

including City Deal, Lancashire 

Environmental Fund and Lottery 
 

 Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

 Housing Infrastructure Fund 
 

 Planning Obligations Fund  

Cabinet member for 

Regeneration & 

Leisure  

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

P
age 59



    

24 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority 

 

Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

18 

Place 
 

 

Programme: Raising community 

aspirations in relation to growth 

and improvements in the Borough 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Lead the development of the  

Borough Community Strategy 

 

 

 South Ribble Partnership Manager  

Leader 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

19 

 

Programme: Renewable energy 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Development of a renewable 

energy feasibility study 

 

 

 Align existing capital and revenue 

budgets and staff 

 

 

Cabinet member for 

Public Health, Safety 

& Wellbeing 

 

 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Regeneration 

and Growth) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 60



    

25 | P a g e  

Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218 

  

Priority Programme and Project (s) Resources Member Lead 
Director 

Lead 

20 

 

Our People 

 

 

 

Programme: Apprentices 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Phase 1 of Apprenticeship 

Factory concept 

 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff 

Leader 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Resources and 

Transformation) 

21 

 

Programme: Leadership 

Development 

 

Project (s):  

 

 Phase 1 Senior Leadership 

Development Programme 

 

 Phase 1 Member Development 

Programme 

 

 Organisational Culture review 

 

 Values and behaviours 

development 

 

 

 Align existing revenue budgets 

and staff 

 

 £100,000 Organisational 

Development budget 

Leader 

Deputy Chief 

Executive 

(Resources and 

Transformation) 

 

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



South Ribble Borough Council: Corporate Risk Register 2018 - 19 Appendix 2

4 8 12 16

3 6 9 12

2 4 6 8

1 2 3 4

Im
p

a
c

t

Likelihood

The Risk Matrix

3: There is a strong possibility the event will occur

2: Unlikely the event will occur

1: Rarely

Impact

4: Major impact

3: Serious impact

2: Minor impact

1: Insignificant impact

Likelihood

4: Almost certain the event will occur

P
age 63



Risk Description Risk Owner Likelihood Impact
Inherent 

Risk Score
Target Risk Level

Additional controls to be 

implemented to achieve 

target risk level

Date for 

implementation of 

additional controls

Member Development 

Charter
30/03/2019

Member and Officer Protocol 30/09/2018

Review of Council 

Constitution
30/09/2018

Implement Strategic Asset 

Review actions
30/09/2018

Develop models for and 

implement further shared 

services

30/09/2018

30/06/2018

1 

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

Existing Control Measure
Residual Risk 

Score

R

i

s

k 

C

a

Failure of corporate 

governance leading to 

external intervention 

SRBC Extended 

Leadership Team 
12

Transformation Strategy

Risk Registers reviewed regularly

Cross party Improvement 

Reference Group with external 

membership in place

AGS Action Plan

Council Constitution and Codes 

of Conduct
Develop a more inclusive 

approach to the 

development of the Annual 

Governance Statement

30/06/2018

Budget Forecasting within MTFS 

with regard to Annual LG Finance 

Settlement

4

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 2

1 

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

Financial Training for relevant 

staff and members

Transformation projects: 

implement savings . income 

generation proposals

5-year MTFS aligned to the 5-year 

Corporate Plan to ensure 

resources are allocated to 

deliver the corporate priorities

Robust monitoring and reporting 

of progress in delivering the 

Corporate Plan and MTFS 
Clear targets in the Corporate 

plan and MTFS with robust 

performance monitoring and 

reporting

31/12/2018

4 3

Reduction in Government 

Grant threatens the financial 

sustainability of the Council

SRBC Leadership 

Team

Maintain high Council Tax and 

Business Rates collection rates

4

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 2

12

3 4

 1

P
age 64



Risk Description Risk Owner Likelihood Impact
Inherent 

Risk Score
Target Risk Level

Additional controls to be 

implemented to achieve 

target risk level

Date for 

implementation of 

additional controls

Existing Control Measure
Residual Risk 

Score

R

i

s

k 

C

a

Update anti-fraud Strategy 30/06/2018

Review Corporate Fraud Risk 

Register in GRACE
30/06/2018

Implement recommendations 

of SOCITIM Review as 

appropriate

30/06/2018

Develop resource plan for 

Campus Programme
30/09/2018

Impact of Brexit on Council 

Services 

SRBC Extended 

Leadership Team 
2 2 4 

Comprehensive policy review 

and revised scheme of 

delegation to reflect the 

Council's new organisational 

structure

30/06/2018

Brexit negotiations and legislation 

under regular review for 

developments that may have an 

impact on services

1

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

1 

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

3 

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 3

Weekly policy review

Fraud & Corruption
SRBC Extended 

Leadership Team 
8 

Fighting Fraud and Corruption 

Locally

Periodic training / awareness 

sessions carried out with officers 

6 

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 3

Probity Policies - Anti Fraud & 

Corruption / Fraud Response Plan 

/ Whistleblowing etc.

Failure of Information systems 

and data security

SRBC Extended 

Leadership Team 
2

Maintaining high level of ICT 

security, achievement of PSN 

accreditation.

Development of annual ICT work 

programme

8 

SRBC Leadership 

Team 9

Capital programme reflects the 

priorities in the Corporate Plan

Regular monitoring of Capital 

Programme

6 

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 3

2 

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 2

1

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

3

Lack of capital funding to 

undertake large scale 

improvements to parks, open 

spaces and leisure facilities

2 4

4

3

4 

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 2

 1

P
age 65



Risk Description Risk Owner Likelihood Impact
Inherent 

Risk Score
Target Risk Level

Additional controls to be 

implemented to achieve 

target risk level

Date for 

implementation of 

additional controls

Existing Control Measure
Residual Risk 

Score

R

i

s

k 

C

a

Early implementation of the 

new organisational structure
30/06/2018

Organisational culture review 30/06/2018

IiP Gold renewal 30/06/2018

Investment in organisational 

development, staff and 

member development 

30/09/2018

Investment in programme 

and project management 

capacity and skills

30/09/2018

More use of pre-scrutiny on 

key decisions
30/09/2018

Early consultation with 

residents / businesses and 

member engagement on key 

strategic issues

30/09/2018

Training and support on the 

use of the ModGov system to 

ensure that all members have 

immediate access to 

published reports within the 

statutory publication deadline

30/06/2018

Project Management System 

Transformation Strategy 

43

Policies including Pay Policy / 

Recruitment policy 

Employee Benefits - keep under 

review and in line with best 

practice

Implement the Transformation 

Strategy action plans - focus on 

organisational development

Publication deadlines for 

Committee reports in place

Political decisions not taken 

by members in a timely way
Leader / CEO 6

4

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 2

1

Likelihood: 1

Impact: 1

2 3

Cross party Improvement 

Reference Group with external 

membership in place

Cross party working

Lack of staff resources, 

systems  and / or the skills 

needed to deliver services 

and corporate plan and 

improvement activities

SRBC Extended 

Leadership Team 

8 

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 4

4 

Likelihood: 2

Impact: 2

12

 1

P
age 66



 1 

Equality Impact Assessment     
 
 

Introduction  
 
An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required to ensure that equality is placed at the 
centre of policy development and review, as well as service delivery.  The purpose of this EIA 
is to systematically analyse the likely impact of a service, policy or proposals on different 
community groups, and how the needs of such groups have been taken into account in 
developing those proposals.  
 
The EIA can anticipate and recommend ways to avoid any discriminatory or negative 
consequences for a particular group, on the grounds of any protected characteristic.  It 
provides the opportunity to demonstrate the potential benefits for equality target groups 
arising from a proposed policy or project.    
 
The need for an EIA stems from the general duty placed on public authorities to eliminate 
unlawful discrimination in carrying out functions, and promote equality of opportunity.  This is 
outlined in the Equality Act 2010, with specific public sector duties in place from April 2011. 
 

 

1. Name of Policy or Service (existing or proposed) 

 
Corporate Plan 2018 - 2023 
 

2. Responsible Manager 

Joanne Platt – Interim Corporate Improvement Manager  

3. Date EIA completed Review date 

19/01/18 January 2019 

4. Description and aims of policy / service (including relevance to equalities) 

 
To bring together the Council’s vision, priorities, objectives, key actions and measures for the 
Council, which drives the budget and performance management framework. 
 

5. Who are the stakeholders? 

 
 Cabinet 
 Scrutiny 
 Councillors 
 Leadership Team 
 Employees 
 External partners 
 Residents 
 Businesses 
 External Audit  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Appendix 3 

Page 67



 2 

6. What outcomes do we want to achieve? 

 
That the Council agrees its vision and priorities for the Council based on the needs of the Borough 
to drive resources and concentrate on the key issues for delivery. 
 

7. How will performance be measured?   

 
 By the Council’s Leadership Team and Extended Leadership Team every quarter 
 Performance monitoring reports to Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet in Quarters 2,3 and 4 and 

an annual report to Full Council at the end of Quarter 4 
 

8. Brief summary of research and background data 

 
 Existing research on the demographics of the Borough 
 Stakeholder feedback – residents, partners, businesses 
 Input from the all members at extended Member Learning Hours 
 Input from Scrutiny Committee 
 Input from Cabinet 
 

9. Methods and outcome of consultation 

 
 Consultation to inform the priorities - with residents via Residents’ Survey undertaken in 

February 2017; with businesses via a business survey undertaken in August 2017 and with 
partners in September 2017.  

 Further consultation on the proposed priorities - with residents (via the Council’s website), the 
South Ribble Partnership (at Board Meeting) and with businesses (via a business breakfast 
meeting held on26th January 2018.  

 

10. Results of initial screening 

 
The following questions have been considered in order to evaluate the various equality groups:-  
 
Age – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the grounds of 
age?  All age groups.  
 
Disability – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the 
grounds of disability?  Disability is recognised under the Equality Act as ‘a physical or mental 
impairment which has a substantial and long term effect on a person’s ability to carry out normal 
day to day activities.’  
 
Gender Reassignment – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of gender reassignment?  The Equality Act recognises this where a person 
is proposing to undergo, is undergoing, or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for 
changing sex.   
 
Marriage / Civil Partnership – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of marriage or civil partnership?  Under the Equality Act, no such protection 
exists for single or unmarried people. 
 
Pregnancy / Maternity – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of pregnancy or maternity? 
 
 

Page 68



 3 

 
Race – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the grounds 
of race?  Race is recognised under the Equality Act as a person’s skin colour, nationality or ethnic 
origin.  
 
Gender – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the 
grounds of gender?  Including men, women and transgender people.    
 
Sexual Orientation – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on 
the grounds of sexuality?  Including heterosexual, gay, lesbian and bisexual people.  
 
Religion or belief – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on 
the grounds of religion or faith?  All faiths recognised in the European Convention of Human 
Rights are included.   
 
A commentary has been provided for each policy where appropriate – see Appendix A 
 

11. Decisions and / or recommendations (including supporting rationale) 

 
The Corporate Plan has been developed specifically to address the needs of the Borough and 
there is no adverse impact on any particular group or groups. As projects identified in the 
Corporate Plan are developed further, equality impact assessments will be undertaken at that 
time. 
 

12. Is an Equality Action Plan required? 

 
No. 
 

Page 69



 4 

Appendix A – Results of initial screening 
 
 

Policy / service 

Protected Characteristics 

Commentary 

A
g

e
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

G
e

n
d

e
r 

re
a

s
s

ig
n

m
e

n
t 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e
 /

 c
iv

il
 

p
’s
h
ip

 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 /

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 

R
a
c

e
 

R
e
li

g
io

n
 o

r 

b
e

li
e

f 

S
e

x
 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

 
 
Corporate Plan 
 

+ + + + + + + + + 

 
The Corporate Plan has been developed specifically to 
address the needs of the Borough and there is no adverse 
impact on any particular group or groups. As projects 
identified in the Corporate Plan are developed further, 
equality impact assessments will be undertaken at that time. 
 

 
 

Symbol Impact 

+ Positive 

O Neutral / Negligible  

- Negative 

P Potential issue 

P
age 70



1

REPORT TO ON

COUNCIL 28th February 2018
September 2017

TITLE PORTFOLIO REPORT OF

Capital Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 Finance Deputy S151 Officer

Is this report a KEY DECISION (i.e. more than £100,000 or 
impacting on more than 2 Borough wards?)

Is this report on the Statutory Cabinet Forward Plan?

Is the request outside the policy and budgetary framework and 
therefore subject to confirmation at full Council? 

Is this report confidential?

Yes 

Yes 

Yes

No 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to set out the Capital Strategy for the next 5 years and how it 
will be funded. This is a key element of the Council’s Corporate Planning process setting out 
the major capital expenditure to deliver its ambitions and services for residents. 

2. CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Council approve the Capital Strategy detailed in Appendix 1;

2.2 Council approve the funding arrangements for the Capital Strategy 

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities 

Clean, green and safe X Strong and healthy communities X

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

X Efficient, effective and exceptional 
council

X

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



2

However, when approved by Council, the corporate priorities for 2018/19 to 2022/23 will 
change to those in the Corporate Plan. This Strategy aligns to those priorities.

4. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

4.1 A 5 year Capital Strategy has been developed as part of the Council’s Corporate Planning 
process this year. It sets out a programme of spending to deliver on the priorities set in the 
Corporate Plan and is attached at Appendix A. The Strategy is structured against the 
corporate priorities which have been developed in conjunction with Members over the past 
few months. 

4.2 This is an ambitious strategy that is deliverable. It seeks to set out an affordable financial 
strategy over the next 5 years, programmed to deliver real change. A significant shift in this 
plan is for the Council to undertake external borrowing over the period to fund the 
expenditure. The implications of this change is incorporated into the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy which will need Council approval on 28th February 2018. Use of 
external borrowing will incur both interest and repayment costs. These costs, and savings 
that have been identified from that investment, have been incorporated into the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) which is considered later on the agenda.

4.3 It is important to note that this is a 5 year plan and funds are allocated to priorities and clear 
intentions are set out. It is based upon what is affordable and deliverable. The detailed 
programmes for each year will still need to be developed and ratified by Members throughout 
the 5 years. 

4.4 There is a little more detail associated with 2018/19 element of the Strategy. Some plans 
have already been identified for next year but further plans will come before Members if the 
Strategy is approved. In addition it includes a few carry forward schemes from the current 
financial year that have commenced but still need to be completed. These are set out below. 

5. PROPOSALS 

5.1 Health, Leisure and Well Being
This programme has evolved with the development of the Campus programme for South 
Ribble. A Cross Party Member Working Group worked with Officers to develop the Campus 
Concept for the Borough. This high level concept was agreed at Cabinet on 6th December 
2017. For the full benefit to be derived, many key partners need to come together to bring 
about step change. However, Members have examined options to use Council investment to 
start the programme. The programme proposed makes investments in green infrastructure, 
existing assets and delivers a new leisure facility as the first part of a Leyland Campus. The 5 
year programme proposed will make a significant improvement for residents. The final 
element is to look to construct a playing pitch hub with artificial grass pitches to improve the 
offer and the reliability of that offer. This programme has previously been discussed and 
agreed at the Working Group and Cabinet.

5.2 Place
South Ribble has embraced the Growth agenda in its Local Plan and as a partner in City 
Deal. Funding has been allocated to enhance existing towns to meet future challenges of 
that growth.

A large part of that Growth agenda will be delivery of new housing. Most of this will be family 
housing delivered by the private sector. However, Members have identified shortfall in 
affordable housing.  Programme to deliver more in appropriate locations within the Borough 
has been identified. 

Page 72



3

Keeping residents safe and within their homes as life changes is a key service of the Council. 
It will continue to support those people through Disabled Facility Grant. In addition the 
Strategy has earmarked a further £1m to help address other issues that may be identified 
from the Stock Condition Survey that will be commissioned in April. 

5.3 Excellence & Financial Sustainability
Capital funding is required for the Council to deliver services and improve what it does. An 
ICT programme, vehicle replacement programme and investments in core buildings will help 
drive more efficiency in its organisation and ultimately better services to the public. 

In addition the Council decided last year to use some of its reserves to invest in income 
generating assets to provide income to deliver services in the future. The processes to 
deliver this investment are now in place and assets will be acquired over the next two years

5.4 Schemes carried forward from 2017/18 programme
The Capital Strategy is a funding programme for capital expenditure for the next 5 years to 
deliver the Council’s ambitions and all future spend will be against those priorities. However, 
there are a few schemes that have been approved and commenced in the current financial 
year that will not be completed until 2018/19. Theses carry forward schemes are:

Table 1 - Carry Forward Schemes from 2017/18 Programme

Open Spaces Infrastructure Schemes 35,000
Hurst Grange Park Drainage works 20,000
St Mary's, Penwortham - Churchyard wall repairs 105,000
Withy Grove Park 40,000
Worden Park - Replacement conservatory / greenhouse 142,505
Worden Park - Toilet facilities improvements 200,000
McNamara Memorial 5,500
Priory Park 11,000
Lostock Hall Football Facility (s106) 145,000
Walton-le-dale Community Centre car park refurbishment 54,505

758,510
Vehicle Replacement Programme 718,444
Carry Forward from 2017/18 1,476,954

6. FUNDING

6.1 The proposed programme is £42.625m over 5 years, including schemes carried forward from 
2017/18. This is a substantial programme for a Borough Council. Additional resources for 
programme management have been identified to help deliver this. However, affordability is 
an important factor and this section looks at how the funding will occur.

6.2 Table 1 below show the funding. The funding cocktail utilises capital receipts and reserves 
that the Council already has and draws down new receipts from future sales, some grant and 
debt of £18m.

Page 73



4

Table 2 – Funding of Capital Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Capital Receipts Reserve 450 500 500 450 100 2,000
New Capital Receipts 1,500 500 500 1,500 4,000
Capital Reserve 800 800 800 800 200 3,400
Borough Investment Reserve 2,500 1,324 3,824
Grants (DFG) 574 550 550 550 550 2,774
Grants (Other) 1,200 960 2,160
S106 500 500 500 500 500 2,500
City Deal 100 500 750 750 400 2,500
Loans 1,750 1,800 13,490 950 17,990

Carry Forward Funding from 2017/18 Programme 1,477 1,477

Funding 8,151 8,674 18,050 4,500 3,250 42,625

6.3 The debt proposed will have a revenue cost to the Council of ultimately £900,000 per annum. 
This has been built into the medium term financial strategy and is offset by future savings 
and reduced maintenance liabilities. The programme also looks at utilising £9.2m of 
reserves. It is estimated that the Council will have £26m of reserves at 31st March 2018 so 
utilising this element to invest in future benefits is a reasonable approach and does not 
jeopardise the Council in the future. A separate section of the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy looks at reserves, their use and future contributions.

6.4 The carry forward schemes were funded in 2017/18 programme and this funding will be carry 
forward into 2018/19.

7. CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT AND OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION

7.1 Consultation with partners and key stakeholders has been undertaken in the formulation of 
the Council priorities for the next 5 years and the construction of the Corporate Plan. The 
Capital Strategy is one element of the financial strategy to deliver those Corporate Plan 
ambitions. The latest residents’ survey results has also influenced how this Strategy has 
been developed. 

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 This report is part of the overall financial strategy for the Council for the next 5 years that will 
enable delivery of the Corporate Plan ambitions. It sets out a clear affordable programme 
and the revenue implications are part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy to be 
recommended to Council.

9. HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT IMPLICATIONS

9.1 There are no direct implications on HR and organisational development in this report at this 
stage. However, some of the investments in buildings and ICT may well impact on how the 
Council works and therefore have an impact. Any of those impacts will be detailed at that 
stage.

Page 74



5

10. ICT/TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The programme identifies funding for ICT over the 5 year period that should meet existing 
priorities. A detailed plan is target to be drawn up early in 2018-19 that will set out how this 
will be spent.

11. PROPERTY AND ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Many of the elements of the Strategy have property and asset management implications. 
Investing in new and improved green infrastructure will have implications on future 
maintenance programmes. Care will be taken in the detailed implementation to ensure 
materials used help minimise these. Equally investment in facilities will have positive impact 
on future maintenance liabilities. However, care also needs to be taken that future planned 
maintenance is incorporated into the plan. Some consideration has been included in the 
papers before Cabinet but detailed implications will be included in each scheme as they are 
progressed and approved by Members.

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

12.1 All of the programmes within this Capital Strategy have risks associated with them ranging 
cost variation to delivery timescales. Changes in each will have further impacts on the wider 
programmes. The Council has adopted a strong programme management approach in its 
structure and way forward. Each of these schemes will have a definitive project plan, 
timescale and responsible officer for delivery. This will be shared with Members as those 
plans are developed.

13. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT

13.1 The investments proposed will have a positive impact for all residents across the whole 
Borough. The proposed investment in Health, Leisure and Well Being will have direct impact 
on all. Access to better open spaces and green links will be significantly improved to open up 
those wonderful opportunities to more of the population. Investment in facilities will address 
some shortfall in provision to meet existing need but will also open up opportunities for wider 
cultural and non-sporting uses.

13.2 The resources identified for Place will deliver the wide ambitions to improve the physical 
infrastructure of towns and villages in the Borough which will open up those places to more 
residents. In addition resources are focussed on helping housing.

14. COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

14.1 The report sets out an ambitious Capital Strategy that has been developed to address the 
priorities of the Corporate Plan. At £42.6m it is significantly larger than previously undertaken 
by the Council because of the major investment in assets. Allocating funding for programme 
management within the Strategy will help recruit the necessary resources to ensure delivery.

14.2 The programme is dependent upon debt funding. These costs are reflected in the proposed 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. However, significant savings will be achieved from this 
investment as outlined previously. Therefore this change in approach is reasonable. 

15. COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

15.1 The decision of Cabinet on the 14th of February to approve the Capital Strategy is subject to 
confirmation by full Council.

Page 75



6

15.2 Our proposed Capital Strategy is ambitious in scale. Potentially it could have a positive 
impact on all of our residents. The Capital Strategy is a key element in the delivery of our 
Corporate Plan.

15.3 There is general enabling legislation that empowers councils to adopt and carry out such 
strategies – most particularly relevant provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 and the 
Localism Act 2011.

16. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS/APPENDICES 

Appendix A Capital Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23

Jane Blundell
Deputy Section 151 Officer

Report Author: Telephone: Date:
Noel O’Neill 01772 

625361
24/01/2018

Page 76



1

APPENDIX A
CAPITAL STRATEGY 2018/19 TO 2022/23

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
Corporate Priority £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Health, Leisure & Well Being
Project Management 50 100 100 50 50 350
Green Infrastructure 400 600 500 500 500 2,500
Existing Built Assets 400 400 400 400 400 2,000
New Leisure Facility 100 1,000 13,000 900 15,000
Sports Pitch Hub 1,000 2,000 1,600 4,600

Place
Masterplanning & Regeneration of key areas 100 500 750 750 400 2,500
Affordable Housing 500 500 500 500 500 2,500
Disabled Facilities Grant 550 550 550 550 550 2,750
Private Sector Housing 200 200 200 200 200 1,000
South Ribble Partnership 24 24

Excellence & Financial Sustainability
Information Technology Programme 150 150 150 150 150 750
Vehicle Replacement Programme 300 1,200 150 400 400 2,450
Corporate Buildings 50 150 150 100 100 550
           - Banquetting Suite 80 80
           - Civic Centre 200 200
           - Depot 70 70
Investment Property 2,500 1,324 3,824

Carry Forward Schemes not yet completed 1,477 1,477

CAPITAL STRATEGY 8,151 8,674 18,050 4,500 3,250 42,625

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO ON

COUNCIL 28th February 2018
September 2017

TITLE PORTFOLIO REPORT OF

2018/19 Budget and Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 Finance Deputy S151 Officer

Is this report a KEY DECISION (i.e. more than £100,000 or 
impacting on more than 2 Borough wards?)

Is this report on the Statutory Cabinet Forward Plan?

Is the request outside the policy and budgetary framework and 
therefore subject to confirmation at full Council? 

Is this report confidential?

Yes 

Yes 

Yes

No 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1  The purpose of this report is to set out the proposed 2018/19 Revenue Budget for the 
Council and the Medium Term Financial Strategy for the next 5 years.  This is the financial 
plan for the Council for the next 5 years. It is aligned to the Corporate Plan and how the 
Council will deliver its ambitions and services for residents. 

2. CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Council approve the revenue budget for 2018/19 as set out in Appendix A. 

2.2 Council approve the 5 year Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2018/19 through to 
2022/23, summarised at Appendix B.

2.3 Council approve a Council Tax increase of 2.99% for 2018/19, as set out in the Council Tax 
Setting report on this agenda. 

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities 

Clean, green and safe X Strong and healthy communities X

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

X Efficient, effective and exceptional 
council

X

Page 79

Agenda Item 8a



2

However, when approved by Council, the corporate priorities for 2018/19 to 2022/23 will 
change to those in the Corporate Plan. This Strategy aligns to those priorities.

4. CONTEXT FOR 2018/19 BUDGET AND MTFS TO 2022/23 

4.1 2017/18 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy
The budget for 2017/18 and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) agreed at Council on 
1st March set out some challenges to deliver a balanced, sustainable budget in the medium 
term. Assumptions were made about future levels of income from business rates, targets 
were set to generate savings from efficiencies and from proposals to deliver new sources of 
income to deliver a balanced position over three years. These totalled £3.3m over three 
years. Implementation has been progressed during the year. Therefore savings reflecting 
those changes are included in the budget proposal before Members.

4.2 Projected Outturn 2017/18
Budget monitoring is reviewed by Governance Committee throughout the year. This 
enables some base budget review during the year to reflect changes to service delivery and 
take up. These changes are reviewed during the budget process and reflected in the base 
budget.

4.3 Peer Review
A Peer Review of the Council was undertaken in 2016/17. An Improvement Plan was 
developed and agreed as part of the recommendations from that review and an 
Improvement Reference Group consisting of Group Leaders, external Political peers and 
the Local Government Association to oversee delivery of that plan. A key element of that 
work has been to oversee the implementation of the MTFS proposals and some key actions 
have been implemented.

4.4 Funding of Local Government

4.4.1 Major changes to local government finance started in 2013/14. These changes saw 
the withdrawal of central government grant to support local spending and the 
introduction of retaining business rates collected locally. 2017/18 was the final year 
that South Ribble received Revenue Support Grant (RSG) from Central 
Government. This was fully explained in the previous MTFS. 

4.4.2 Business Rate Retention (BRR) and the Lancashire Pooling arrangements have 
been established since 2013/14. In essence this scheme allows increases in 
business rates to be retained locally. The Local Government Finance Settlement 
2018/19 identifies the Secretary of State’s intention to increase business rate 
retention as a means of funding over the next few years. Some new pilots have been 
announced to look at different arrangements for retention and pooling. The 
Lancashire Pool is a successful example and will feed into any future review of the 
arrangements. The pooling and local retention of growth arrangements continue to 
demonstrate benefit to South Ribble and contribute positively to the Council’s 
financial position. A key factor is that the Council will benefit significantly from the 
growth in business rates collected in the area. Future growth will further enhance our 
retention in the future. There is an increase in BRR in the 2018/19 budget which 
exceeds the expectations of the current MTFS.

4.4.3 The Local Government Settlement for 2018/19 specifically states the Secretary of 
State’s intention to reset the business rates retention system in 2020/21.  This will 
see NNDR Baselines adjusted to reflect how much local authorities are actually 
collecting in business rates. The implications of this are impossible to assess at this 
stage. However, any changes will have transitional arrangements and South Ribble 
is protected by the future growth elements that are still to come forward. This is also 
a reason to continue to maintain a Business Rate Retention Equalisation Reserve.

Page 80



3

4.4.4 New Homes Bonus scheme was established to pass the “benefits” of generating net 
increases in housing supply to local authorities. Changes were announced last year 
to change the benefit from 6 years to 4 years. Moreover locally South Ribble 
Borough Council has committed to pay its receipts into City Deal. The impact is that 
this funding stream will cease to fund South Ribble services directly in 2020/21.

4.4.5 Council tax remains the major source of funding for local services. Councils can 
determine the levels of taxation for their local areas but there are limitations imposed 
by Government regulation. The Secretary of State sets out thresholds annually for 
each tier of local government above which council tax increases would be deemed 
excessive. The Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 announced the 
levels for South Ribble as 3% or £5 whichever is the higher. This is a movement 
from 2% and £5 last year.  A proposal for increase is included in this paper as a 
specific recommendation

4.5 Growth

4.5.1 South Ribble is embracing the growth agenda fully. Its Local Plan identifies 
commercial and employment growth as well as the associated housing numbers. 
The Council is a major partner in Central Lancashire City Deal. As such the Council 
has committed investment of future funding into the programme but will see 
increases to its business rate and council tax receipts as the growth is delivered. In 
2017/18, planning consent for Cuerden Business Park was secured.

4.5.2 Growth and a population expansion will also bring with it some additional costs and 
demands upon our services. Our Corporate Plan does and will continue to identify 
projects to meet these demands. This MTFS and the Capital Strategy identify the 
financial resources for the next 5 years to deliver on those ambitions.

4.6 Corporate Plan
The Council has developed a 5 year Corporate Plan that sets out its priorities for the next 5 
years and outcomes that it intends to achieve. This reflects the resident survey, consultation 
with stakeholders and Member input and it will be recommended to Council on 28th 
February 2018. The emerging priorities are:

 Financial Excellence and Sustainability
 Health, Leisure & Well Being
 Place

This budget and MTFS have been aligned to these priorities. Future decisions and spending 
proposals are linked directly to these priorities.

4.7 Capital Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23
A 5 year Capital Strategy has also been developed and linked to the Corporate Plan. 
Mindful of the future growth of the population, the health of the existing population and the 
ageing council leisure asset stock, the Council has developed a Campus Programme for 
South Ribble. That proposal requires significant investment to deliver the desired outcomes. 
The 5 year Capital Strategy identifies funding to make a significant impact to that agenda. If 
agreed then this requires the council to borrow to deliver. This investment will also deliver 
long term financial benefits. 

4.8 Medium Term Financial Strategy
The proposed MTFS brings together the budget proposals for 2018/19 identified below that 
reflect Council decisions and future recommendations into a 5 year financial plan. 
Assumptions on future growth and spending are incorporated into that plan as well as 
potential future changes to service delivery. This is specifically covered in section 7 below.

Page 81



4

5. 2018/19 BUDGET

5.1 The table in Appendix A sets out the proposed budget for 2018/19. For comparison it shows 
the current year budget. It is based upon a fully costed structure that is in place, existing 
service delivery arrangements and standards, future committed contractual arrangements 
and income generated from services. The impact of decisions made and implemented in 
2017/18 have been included to show the base budget requirement. The underlying 
assumptions utilised are shown in Appendix C. 

5.2 This section focuses on 2018/19 budget specifically. It sets out to identify the specific 
decisions required of Cabinet and Council. It will also explain the major elements and 
changes from the current MTFS.

5.3 Table 1 is a summary of the 2018/19 budget proposal. The starting point is the Borough 
Council budget requirement for 2018/19 identified in the current MTFS less any contribution 
to or from reserves. 

Table 1 Summary of 2018/19 Budget Proposals

£000's
2018/19 Requirement per current MTFS 13,028

2016/17 Decisions implementation (329)
Updates & Base Budget Review 97
Revision of salaries incl pay award impact 63
Elections contributions 30

Revised Budget Requirement 12,889
MTFS Issues decided but to be implemented

Restructure (210)
Fees and charges 0
Property Investment (100)

Funding  
New Homes Bonus net of City Deal (407)
Council Tax on existing base (7,467)
Business Rates Retained per Government Settlement (4,293)

Initial Budget Gap 412
2018/19 Budget Proposals
Investment in Corporate Plan (net) 173
Net Borrowing Costs from Capital Strategy 45
Transformation Savings (270)
Release from Transformation Fund (79)
Fees and Charges (60)
Council Tax Increase of 2.99% (221)
Forecast 2018/19 Budget Deficit/(Surplus) 0
Use of General Fund Balance 0

0

5.4 Revised Base Budget Requirement
Decisions were made during the 2016/17 budget making process that have an impact upon 
2018/19 budget. The additional income from garden waste and the reduction in PCSO 
spending and creation of a corporate capacity fund are the major factors in this contribution 

Page 82



5

of £329,000. Throughout 2017/18 there have been increases in contracts and costs as well 
as some increases in income levels. The net budget review impact is an addition cost of 
£95,000. Public sector pay awards are determined nationally and this has been settled at an 
average level of 2%. This is above the original assumption so additional costs need to be 
added to the budget. The additional costs and income have an on-going impact on future 
years. The impact has been incorporated into the Medium Term Financial Strategy which is 
shown in Appendix B and discussed later in section 7.
 

5.5 MTFS Decisions to be Implemented
The senior management restructure was agreed at Council in November 2017. Recruitment 
processes have commenced and there will be savings delivered in 2018/19. As the report 
stated, larger savings will ensue as the capacity fund is withdrawn at the end of 2018/19. 
Council rejected the fees and charges increases proposed at its meeting on 17th January 
2018. Some inflationary allowances have been provided for in 2018/19 (assuming part-year 
implementation) and the remaining years of the MTFS. However, no allowance has been 
made for car parking. Seeking income from property investment is an aim of the Council. A 
process have now been agreed and a procurement for advisers underway. The budget 
assumes some investment in 2018/19 and income generated.

5.6 Funding

5.6.1 The New Homes Bonus figure in the table above is the element of NHB that the 
Council retains after making its contribution to City Deal. These figures were 
confirmed by Government in early January. It is increased slightly by £17,000 from 
the assumption in the current MTFS.

5.6.2 Retained Business Rates is based upon the NNDR 1. Here there is a significant shift 
from the current MTFS assumptions. That predicted a base level of £3.643m and 
potential growth within the wider savings package of £0.25m. The retained business 
rates in the proposal is £4.293m. This is additional income of £400,000 on an on-
going basis. In determining the level for 2018/19, a provision has also been set aside 
in the Business Rates Retention Reserve for City Deal. This reflects the Council’s 
commitment to pay over its retained business rate commitments within the City Deal 
arrangements.

5.6.3 The Council Tax figure represents the current rate. It includes £61,000 for the 
surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund.

5.7 2018/19 Budget Proposals – Investment in Corporate Priorities

5.7.1 Specific investments of £373,000, aligned with the Corporate Plan, have been 
identified in the budget proposal to give the Council the capacity to deliver on these 
priorities. They are summarised below in Table 2. The detail of each is shown on the 
Corporate Plan but, to aid the decision making process, are described briefly below 
the table.

Page 83



6

Table 2 Investments in the Corporate Priorities proposed

£000's
Excellence
Organisational Development 100
Health & Well Being
Health & Well Being, Voluntary Sector - Partnership Post 48
Place
Cuerden - 1 planner 50
Economic Strategy - Economic Development Officer 50
Economic Strategy - Place Promotion 100
Housing Delivery 25
Release from City Deal Reserve to fund growth (200)

  Net Investment in Corporate Plan 173

5.7.2 The Council has adopted a Transformation Strategy that will bring about significant 
change to the way it works and the culture of the organisation. The LGA Corporate 
Peer Challenge recognised that the Council would refresh its organisational  values 
in 2017, working with staff, members and partners to reshape our organisational 
culture to one that is more empowering and agile and rooted in ambition, pace, 
innovation, transformation and delivery. As part of the Strategy, a new management 
structure has been agreed and is being recruited to. Major transformation projects 
have commenced looking to embed this culture and leadership model as well as 
drive efficiencies. The impact of the Growth agenda will also impact on the role of 
the Council. 

It is important that the Council is positioned in the right place to deliver on all of 
these agendas. The Transformation Strategy identified an organisational 
development challenges and opportunities for both Members and officers over the 
next few years. Investment is necessary in the organisational development to ensure 
that “our people” are equipped to meet the challenges ahead and deliver the 
ambitious agenda for our residents. Therefore resources have been identified to 
support this objective.

5.7.3 The South Ribble Partnership brings together people from across the public sector, 
businesses and voluntary and community organisations with an aim to deliver better 
services in South Ribble, based on what local people want. The Council takes a 
leading role in the partnership’s work and will continue to provide strong leadership 
on this going forward to make sure we maximise the collective resources of the 
partnership and the partners for the benefit of South Ribble communities and 
residents. Funding for the Partnership Manager position ceases on 31st March 2018. 
This post is essential to smooth running of partnership working so funding is 
identified to keep this post within the structure.

5.7.4 South Ribble will see major growth over the next 5 to 10 years. It is important that 
the Council is in a position to ensure that the opportunities are seized and that major 
new businesses and employers are attracted to the area. Three investments have 
been identified to help deliver on these ambitions. First an additional planner has 
been identified for 2 years to ensure that the Cuerden is delivered well. Secondly an 
additional economic development position has been identified for 2 years to help 
promote the area and work with the commercial and industrial sectors to ensure that 
the South Ribble product is attractive to new investment. This is essential to secure 
the positive outcomes of City Deal. Finally a place promotion budget of £100,000 
has been identified.  The Council no longer has a base budget for this activity. It is 
seen as another essential element to delivering the right offer to attract potential 

Page 84



7

employers and investors to the area. This funding will be used for a range of 
activities to promote the area as a place to invest and live and develop a national 
profile. They will include creating marketing collateral, developing a programme of 
events to promote the area and having a presence at national developer events. It 
will involve working with Central Lancashire City Deal partners and Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership. 

5.7.5 The growth element of this investment is directly linked to City Deal. Therefore it 
proposed that this will be funded by £200,000 from the City Deal reserve.

5.7.6 Delivery of housing numbers from using Council assets is an ambition of Members. 
External funding has been secured to develop a business plan and model to deliver 
in South Ribble. This funding of £25,000 is the match funding required from the 
Council to complete the outline business case. The implications of that business 
case have NOT been included in the financial strategy at this time because the 
implications are not known until that work is complete. An effective business plan will 
identify funding options to deliver a programme and bring financial benefits to the 
Council.

5.8 Capital Strategy
The detailed Capital Strategy is a separate report on this agenda. It sets out the 5 year 
investment plan and there are consequences of borrowing to meet some of the investment. 
The net impact on revenue for 2018/19 investment is £45,000.

5.9 Transformation Savings
£270,000 savings from the Transformation Programme has been included in the 2018/19 
budget. This is the forecast 2018/19 saving from the 1st phase of transformation. It is 
focussed in the following areas:

 Depot Commercialisation Phase 1
 ICT Review
 Gateway Review
 Corporate review of neighbourhood working

Work has commenced and the level of savings for 2018/19 are achievable. Some initial 
investment for the commercialisation project is required and was approved at Cabinet on 
25th January 2018. This has been included in the base budget but is to be funded from the 
Transformation Reserve established earlier in the year.

5.10 Council tax increase
The Council has the ability to increase council tax levels to fund on-going expenditure. 
Options to increase Band D council tax have been considered. These options and the level 
of additional income generated are shown in Table 3 below.

Table 3 Potential Income from Council Tax Increases

Potential Tax Amount per Budget amount
Increase Band D Property Generated

£ £

1.99% increase 4.15 150,000

£5 per property (2.4%) 5.00 180,000

2.99% increase 6.23 225,000

Page 85



8

The proposal before Members includes an increase of 2.99% generating c£225,000 of 
additional revenue. Cabinet is asked to recommend this increase to Council on 28th 
February 2018.

6. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS)

6.1 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is shown in Appendix B. This reflects the 
impact of investing in the Corporate Plan over the next 5 years. It takes on the full year 
impact of 2018/19 budget decisions but further assumptions have been made. This section 
outlines what those assumptions are and how they impact on the overall financial strategy.

6.2 Pension Fund Triennial Review
The pension fund is revalued every three years and contributions adjusted based upon the 
actuary’s opinion of value and liabilities. The next revaluation takes place in 2019/20. 
Invariably this results in an increase in local authority contribution. An estimate of a 2% 
increase has been included in the MTFS from 2020/21 to reflect potential changes.

Page 86



9

6.3 Fees and Charges
Increases in general fees and charges have been assumed based upon an assumption on 
general inflation. Car parking has been excluded. A strategic review of car parking charges 
will be undertaken in the next financial year. It is prudent to await the outcome of that review 
before building in any changes to the future financial plan.

6.4 Property Investment
The increase to £300,000 per annum from 2019/20 onwards reflects the Council’s current 
ambition. This may change when the professional advisers are appointed and research the 
opportunities fully. Again it is prudent to await that outcome before changing future 
assumptions. Members should note that discussions on implementing restrictions on how 
Council’s invest in property have been on-going. The Council’s Treasury management 
Strategy fully reflects current best practice and will underpin each business decision that is 
brought forward.

6.5 Transformation and Shared Services Savings

6.5.1 The increase in 2019/20 and following years reflects the full year impact of the 
transformation planned for 2018/19, phase 2 of the transformation programme and 
shared services review. Seeking excellence is a priority for the Council and 
transforming services is integral to that ambition. Delivering an additional £300,000 
per annum from 2019/20 is a reasonable target. Work will commence in 2018/19 to 
ensure delivery of those future savings.

6.5.2 The transformation programme has commenced and will be well established in the 
next financial year. It is worthy of note that by the end of 2019/20 the Council will 
have achieved c£1m in transformational savings. That is £410,000 from the senior 
management restructure that will be fully embedded by then and a further £580,000 
from phase 1 and phase 2 (which includes shared services) of the transformation 
programme. 

6.6 Capital Strategy
The Capital Strategy sets out a 5 year investment programme of £42.6m to deliver 
significant improvements to services for residents of the Borough. To deliver this ambitious 
programme it is anticipated borrowing of £18m will be undertaken. However, the investment 
in the Health, Leisure and Well Being programme will deliver savings and significant 
additional income which were highlighted to Members in a previous report. This line shows 
the net position over 5 years.

6.7 Business Rates

6.7.1 Business Rate retention brings with it many advantages including keeping a share of 
the benefits of growth locally. However, there are also some potential risks because 
negative changes to business rate levels such as business closures or empty rates 
needs to be met locally. Therefore the Council has established a Business rate 
Retention Reserve over the past 4 years.

6.7.2 Part of this reserve has now been identified for City Deal specific payments. As part 
of City Deal the Council is committed to certain levels of payments based upon 
business rate growth over the next few years. Also the Council will need to incur 
additional expenditure to deliver that growth. This reserve will help meet some of 
those commitments.

6.7.3 The retained business rate level within the MTFS is retained at the base level 
established in 2018/19. No assumptions are made for inflation or growth in this 
number. The risk is that the baseline will be adjusted. The tariff included is based 
upon the provisional 2018/19 Local Government Settlement.

Page 87



10

6.7.4 Part of the benefits of retaining business rates is that the increases in rates level 
generated from growth are kept locally. The MTFS shows some of these benefits 
coming into the Council’s financial strategy in 2020/21 and increasing the following 
year. This reflects the implications of decisions made on Cuerden and the timing of 
new developments coming on stream. The numbers reflect a prudent assessment of 
the net South Ribble element based upon the current funding and pooling 
arrangements. 

6.8 Capital Funding Reserve
The Capital Funding Reserve is a revenue reserve that funds future capital spending. 
Investing in the Capital Strategy over the next 5 years utilises all of the Council’s Capital 
Funding Reserve of £3.4m. However, there is a positive impact of retained business rates in 
2021 and thereafter from the development of Cuerden and decisions that have been taken. 
The MTFS has identified replenishing the Capital Reserve by c£1.2m in the later years of 
the plan to make provision to fund the next Capital Strategy. This is reflected in the 
assessment of reserves below.

6.9 Council Tax
The MTFS assumes a continuation of Council tax rises at 1.99% for the following 4 years. 
This decision will be reviewed each year as Council must determine the level of Council Tax 
each year as a formal, statutory decision as a billing authority. This gives the mandate for 
billing each household.
 

6.10 Use of General Fund Balances
The proposed MTFS recommends using general fund balances of £400,000 in 2019/20 and 
2020/21 to meet the forecast shortfall in budget. This enables a transition to a balanced 
position in 2021/22 with contributions to the Capital Funding Reserve. Other options 
including increasing fees and charges, further rises in Council Tax or higher transformation 
savings have been considered. 

7. RESERVES

7.1 The Council had £28m of reserves on its balance sheet as at 31st March 2017. These are 
made up of general fund balance, earmarked reserves which are funds set aside for specific 
purposes historically, carry forward reserves from surplus income and under spending in 
previous years, business rate reserve, capital receipts and funds for specific purposes such 
as section 106 for affordable housing. A strategic review of the categorisation of these 
reserves has been undertaken during the budget process prompted by the focus of the 
financial strategy of the Council to the new Corporate Plan. 

7.2 The overall strategy will see the Council utilising its reserves over the next 5 years to deliver 
the major investments required. The impact of this investment is shown on the overall 
reserve levels in table 4 below. 

Table 4    Projected Reserves over the life of the MTFS

Page 88



11

31/3/17 31/3/18 31/3/19 31/3/20 31/3/21 31/3/22 31/3/23
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

General Fund Balance 4,597 4,981 4,981 4,885 4,581 4,581 4,581

Capital Funding Reserve (CFR) 4,197 3,447 2,600 1,800 1,000 200 0
Contribution from MTFS to CFR 635 538
Borough Investment Fund 3,824 3,824 1,324 0
Transformation Fund 500 350 100 0
Repairs and Maintenance Fund 500 350 250 250 250 250
Equalisation Reserve - BRR 3,249 2,087 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200
Equalisation Reserve - City Deal 1,671 2,000 2,200 1,800 1,500 1,200
Specific Reserves 994 383 220 250 60 90 0
Apprenticeship 335 280 140 140 140 140
Carry Forward Reserves 1,733 0
Commuted Sums 221 0
Other Revenue Reserves 14,218 12,747 9,324 6,940 5,450 5,015 4,328

Capital Reseves
Capital Receipts 2,106 1,856 1,500 1,000 500 100 0
Section 106
            affordable housing 3,736 4,121 3,500 3,000 2,100 2,100 2,100
            other 1,887 2,117 1,700 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,200
            community 452 708 700 600 500 400 500
Receipts in advance 794 250 250 250 250 250 250
Miscellaneous 376 209 200 200 200 200 200
Total Capital Reserves 9,351 9,261 7,850 6,550 5,050 4,550 4,250

Total Reserves 28,166 26,990 22,155 18,375 15,081 14,146 13,159

7.3 There is a statutory requirement within the Local Government Act 2003 for billing authorities 
such as South Ribble to have regard for the level of balances required for future needs 
when calculating its budget requirement. A prudent level for General Fund Reserve is 
between £4m and £5m for an authority with a net budget requirement of £13m. This should 
cover any unforeseen emergency funding challenges. 

7.4 The Council is increasingly reliant on retained business rates as a source of income. The 
system has now been in place for 5 years and some confidence can be attached to the 
future receipts. This is particularly the case in South Ribble because of the Central 
Lancashire City Deal and decisions taken this year on the key site of Cuerden. Real growth 
in business rates will be delivered by 2021. There is still the need to maintain a Business 
Retention Reserve to protect the Council from future fluctuations but it is probably at the 
right level now. Part of the fund has been allocated specifically for City Deal liabilities. This 
will help meet the Council’s future commitments and protect the revenue budget from any 
unforeseen fluctuations.

7.5 Reducing the level of reserves will reduce the level of investment interest that the Council 
will receive year on year. However, returns are extremely modest at around 0.5% so the 
overall impact has been absorbed into the MTFS.

7.6 The overall level of reserves at the end of the MTFS period remains substantial. General 
Fund balance is predicted to be £4.4m and other revenue reserves exceed £5m.

8. CONSULTATION CARRIED OUT AND OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION

8.1 Consultation with partners and key stakeholders has been undertaken in the formulation of 
the Council priorities for the next 5 years and the construction of the Corporate Plan. The 

Page 89



12

revenue budget is the major element of the financial strategy to deliver those Corporate 
Plan ambitions. 

8.2 The emerging priorities and budget approach has been consulted on with residents via the 
Council’s consultation page on its website. This information was also shared with South 
Ribble Partnership and the wider business community. 

9. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

9.1 This report is the overall financial strategy for the Council for the next 5 years that will 
enable delivery of the Corporate Plan ambitions. It sets out a clear affordable programme of 
investment, organisational development and growth. All of these factors are summarised in 
the 5 year MTFS to be recommended to Council. This MTFS allows for spending to be 
made to deliver changes and improvements and for funding to be generated to pay for 
future capital spending and liabilities.

10. HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The budget and MTFS has implications across the whole organisation as it sets out the 
financial plan for the next 5 years. Investment is recommended in organisational 
development and staffing resources to meet new demands of the growth agenda. Structural 
changes already agreed are included and potential savings target determined which may 
include HR implications. However, no detailed proposals are made within this report.

11. ICT/TECHNOLOGY IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The programme identifies funding for ICT over the 5 year period that should meet existing 
priorities and funding for the staffing resource to support the management and maintenance 
of service delivery. A detailed plan is target to be drawn up early in 2018-19 that will set out 
how this will be spent.

12. PROPERTY AND ASSET MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

12.1 Many of the elements of the budget and MTFS have property and asset management 
implications. Investing in new and improved green infrastructure will have implications on 
future maintenance programmes. Care will be taken in the detailed implementation to 
ensure materials used help minimise these. Equally investment in facilities will have positive 
impact on future maintenance liabilities. Specific provision has been made for repairs and 
maintenance. The budget includes resources to staff the property function and ensure that 
the Council facilities are maintained.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT

13.1 All of the programmes undertaken by the Council have risks associated with them.  The 
Council has adopted a strong programme management approach in its structure and way 
forward. Each of these schemes will have a definitive project plan, timescale and 
responsible officer for delivery. The proposed MTFS funds this programme and will enable 
the Council to support a positive approach to risk management.

13.2 A review of reserves and balances has been undertaken in developing the recommended 
budget and MTFS. Some resources have been targeted at specific risk. However, the level 
of reserves held ensure that the Council can adequately deal with unexpected major events.

14. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT

14.1 The investments proposed will have a positive impact for all residents across the whole 
Borough. The proposed investment in Health, Leisure and Well Being will have direct 
impact on all. Access to better open spaces and green links will be significantly improved to 

Page 90



13

open up those wonderful opportunities to more of the population. Investment in facilities will 
address some shortfall in provision to meet existing need but will also open up opportunities 
for wider cultural and non-sporting uses.

14.2 The resources identified for Place will deliver the wide ambitions to improve the physical 
infrastructure of towns and villages in the Borough which will open up those places to more 
residents. In addition resources are focussed on helping housing.

14.3 Investment in Council business is targeted at improving service deliver efficiency and 
accessibility of those services. Resources have been allocated to ensure that this will be at 
the heart of all service delivery and improvements.

15. COMMENTS OF THE ACTING STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

15.1 This report sets out the budget proposals for 2018/19 and the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy for 2018/19 to 2022/23. These financial plans underpin the delivery of the 
new Corporate Plan for 2018/19 to 2022/23. This report should be considered together with 
the 5 year Capital Strategy report, a separate item on this agenda. The forecast financial 
implications of the capital investment proposed in the Capital Strategy for 2018/19 to 
2022/23 are incorporated into the reserves forecasts at 7.2 and the revenue budget 
forecasts which are set out in Appendices A and B to this report.  

 
15.2 As set out in the report, full consideration has been given to:

 the potential impact of the growth agenda on both Council resources and future 
income;

 central government funding proposals (as advised in the provisional 2018/19 Local 
Government Finance settlement);

 the Council’s Transformation programme;
 forecast capital and revenue implications of delivering the Corporate Plan;
 the assessment and management of risk

15.3 In addition, key actions arising out of the external peer review process have also been 
implemented, including undertaking a strategic review of the Council’s revenue and capital 
reserves. This has resulted in a re-categorisation of the reserves and a plan to utilise the 
available capital reserves to fund the capital investment proposals. 

15.4 During 2017/18 the Council has performed well in growing its business rate base and 
continues to proactively pursue the recovery of all business rates liabilities. There has 
therefore been an uplift in the business rates income forecast and this has contributed to 
meeting the budget gap and has also enabled the Council to set aside monies in reserves 
to fund future liabilities, including its commitments in relation to City Deal. Progress has also 
been made during the year in relation to major development sites such as Cuerden. Based 
on the expected timescales for development, this will result in a more significant increase in 
business rates income for the Council in the later years and the MTFS therefore shows 
some of this being used to replenish the Capital Reserves to ensure future capital 
investment can be funded.  

15.5 As well as business rates growth, the Medium Term Financial Strategy includes prudent 
assumptions for increased Council Tax income based on forecast housing growth through 
the City Deal programme.    

15.6 The resulting 2018/19 budget and MTFS forecasts, as set out in Appendices A and B, show 
total contributions of c£400k from General Balances for years 2019/20 to 2020/21, with a 
balanced position forecast for 2021/22 and 2022/23. These forecasts are based on the 
assumptions set out in this report, which include decisions to be made on future Council 
Tax increases, investment in the Corporate Plan and the planned use of reserves and also 
assume that the Transformation Savings will be delivered.  

Page 91



14

15.7 This report sets out the budget proposals and assumptions for the delivery of a Balanced 
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy. As required under Section 25 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, I confirm that in my opinion the estimate forecasts are robust and 
there is an adequate level of balances to support the risks associated with a borough 
council of this size.      

16. COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

16.1 The budget has been set with reference to all relevant legal requirements set out in the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 and all other related legislation, statutory instruments 
and regulations.

16.2 Cabinet at its meeting on the 14th of February agreed budget proposals. These are now 
referred to full Council for their consideration.

16.3 Members will fully appreciate that there is a legal duty to set a lawful budget in time. For all 
practical purposes Council needs to set this budget at its meeting on the 28th of February.

16.4 Members jointly and severally (individually and collectively) have a fiduciary duty to Council 
Tax payers. This means they have a duty to facilitate the setting of a lawful budget.

16.5 Failure to set a lawful budget may result in legal challenge by way of judicial review 
proceedings. More generally any such failure could result in loss of income, significant 
additional administrative costs as well as reputational damage. There is a further risk that a 
failure to set a lawful budget in a timely fashion could result in intervention from the 
Secretary of State.

17. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS and APPENDICES

2017/18 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy – Cabinet 20th Feb 2017 

Appendix A    2018-19 Revenue Summary
Appendix B    Medium Term Financial Strategy
Appendix C    Budget Assumptions Summary
Appendix D    Equality Impact Assessment

Jane Blundell
Deputy Section 151 Officer

Report Author: Telephone: Date:
Noel O’Neill /Jane Blundell 01772 

625245
24/01/2018

                                                          

Page 92



16

Appendix A

ORIGINAL FORECAST
PORTFOLIO 2017/18 2018/19

£000's £000's

Leader 1,821 1,910
Finance 862 874
Corporate Support and Assets 5,266 5,287
Neighbourhoods & Streetscene 4,749 5,354
Public Health Safety & Wellbeing 549 422
Regeneration and Leisure 1,485 1,434
Strategic Planning & Housing 221 141

Restructure savings 0 (210)
Staff Turnover Savings Target (100) (100)

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGETS 14,853 15,112

Financing and Investment (2,478) (2,563)

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves 809 30

BOROUGH COUNCIL BUDGET REQUIREMENT 13,184 12,579

FUNDED BY:
Revenue Support Grant/Tariff adjustment (346) 0
Transition Grant (92) 0
New Homes Bonus (net of City Deal payments) (681) (407)
Retained Business Rates (net of City Deal payments) (4,267) (4,293)
Council Tax (7,498) (7,467)

TOTAL FUNDING (12,884) (12,167)

FORECAST BUDGET GAP 300 412

18/19 BUDGET PROPOSALS:
Investment in Corporate Plan (net) - 173
Net borrowing costs from Capital Strategy - 45
Transformation and Shared Services savings - (270)
Release from Transformation Fund - (79)
Fees and Charges (60)
Council Tax increase at 2.99% - (221)

300 (0)

Use of General Fund Balance (300) 0

FORECAST BUDGET (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0 (0)

2018-19 REVENUE BUDGET

Page 93



17

                               
Appendix B

 

FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST
PORTFOLIO 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Leader 1,910 1,966 1,932 1,955 1,994
Finance 874 895 895 895 895
Corporate Support and Assets 5,287 5,230 5,356 5,462 5,571
Neighbourhoods & Streetscene 5,354 5,345 5,378 5,498 5,608
Public Health Safety & Wellbeing 422 437 452 465 475
Regeneration and Leisure 1,434 1,465 1,461 1,486 1,515
Strategic Planning & Housing 141 96 16 16 16

Pensions Triennial Review 0 0 200 200 200
Restructure savings (210) (410) (410) (410) (410)
Staff Turnover Savings Target (100) (100) (100) (100) (100)

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGETS 15,112 14,924 15,180 15,466 15,764

Financing and Investment (2,563) (2,479) (2,438) (2,438) (2,438)

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves 30 (90) 30 30 30

BOROUGH COUNCIL BUDGET REQUIREMENT 12,579 12,355 12,772 13,058 13,356

FUNDED BY:
Revenue Support Grant/Tariff adjustment 0 494 494 494 494
Transition Grant 0 0 0 0 0
New Homes Bonus (net of City Deal payments) (407) (135) (59) 0 0
Retained Business Rates (net of City Deal payments) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293)
Council Tax (7,467) (7,516) (7,616) (7,766) (7,826)

TOTAL FUNDING (12,167) (11,450) (11,474) (11,565) (11,625)

FORECAST BUDGET GAP 412 905 1,298 1,493 1,731

18/19 BUDGET PROPOSALS:
Investment in Corporate Plan (net) 173 125 100 100 100
Net borrowing costs from Capital Strategy 45 140 520 880 900
Indicative Savings and income from Capital Strategy 0 0 (100) (1,186) (1,186)
Transformation and Shared Services savings (270) (580) (615) (615) (615)
Release from Transformation Fund (79) 0 0 0 0
Fees and Charges (60) (121) (121) (121) (121)
Council Tax increases (221) (373) (528) (686) (847)

MTFS ASSUMPTIONS:
Contribution to Capital Asset reserve 0 0 0 635 538
Forecast net Business Rates Growth 0 0 (250) (500) (500)

(0) 96 304 0 (0)
Use of General Fund Balance 0 (96) (304) 0 0
FORECAST BUDGET (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT (0) 0 0 0 (0)

MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2018/19 TO 2022/23

        

Page 94



18

Appendix C

        Budget Assumptions Summary

Budget Item Assumption

Pay increases 2% per annum. 

Pensions Revaluation 2% increase in employer’s rate from 2020/21. 

Non-pay Inflation Other than pay increases, inflation has only 
been applied to expenditure budgets where 
contracts are in place. Other expenditure 
budgets are generally cash limited.

Fees and charges No increase in 2018/19, inflationary increases 
from 2019/20.   

Council Tax Increases 2.99% increase in 2018/19; 1.99% increase per 
annum 2019/20 - 2022/23.
 

Retained Business Rates: 
Baseline Funding Level

2018/19: £2.257m
2019/20: £2.307m

Business Rates Tariff Increase in tariff £494k per annum from 
2019/20. 

Revenue Support Grant This was removed in the Local Government 
Finance Settlement with effect from 2018/19. 

Average Treasury 
Investment returns

18/19: 0.6%                        21/22: 1.5%     
19/20: 0.9%                        22/23: 1.75% 
20/21: 1.25%

 

Page 95



19

Equality Impact Assessment

Introduction 

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required to ensure that equality is placed at the centre of policy 
development and review, as well as service delivery.  The purpose of this EIA is to systematically analyse 
the likely impact of a service, policy or proposals on different community groups, and how the needs of 
such groups have been taken into account in developing those proposals. 

The EIA can anticipate and recommend ways to avoid any discriminatory or negative consequences for a 
particular group, on the grounds of any protected characteristic.  It provides the opportunity to demonstrate 
the potential benefits for equality target groups arising from a proposed policy or project.   

The need for an EIA stems from the general duty placed on public authorities to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination in carrying out functions, and promote equality of opportunity.  This is outlined in the 
Equality Act 2010, with specific public sector duties in place from April 2011.

1. Name of Policy or Service (existing or proposed)

Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy 2018 - 2023

2. Responsible Manager

Jane Blundell – Deputy S151 Officer  
3. Date EIA completed Review date

20/01/18 January 2019

4. Description and aims of policy / service (including relevance to equalities)

To bring together the Council’s vision, priorities, objectives, key actions and measures for the 
Council, which drives the budget and performance management framework.

5. Who are the stakeholders?

 Cabinet
 Scrutiny
 Councillors
 Leadership Team
 Employees
 External partners
 Residents
 Businesses
 External Audit 

Appendix D

Page 96



20

6. What outcomes do we want to achieve?

That the Council agrees its 2018/19 Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy for the next 5 
years. This is the financial plan for the Council which is aligned to the Corporate Plan and the 
resources required to deliver its ambitions and services to the residents. 

7. How will performance be measured?  

 By the Council’s Leadership Team and Extended Leadership Team every quarter
 Budget monitoring reports to Governance/Cabinet in Quarters 2, 3 and 4.

8. Brief summary of research and background data

 Existing research on the demographics of the Borough
 Stakeholder feedback – residents, partners, businesses
 Input from the all members at extended Member Learning Hours
 Input from Scrutiny Committee
 Input from Cabinet

9. Methods and outcome of consultation

 Consultation with residents via Residents’ Survey undertaken in February 2017, with 
businesses via a business survey undertaken in August 2017 and with partners in 
September 2017. 

 Business event January 2018.

10. Results of initial screening

The following questions have been considered in order to evaluate the various equality groups:- 

Age – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the grounds of 
age?  All age groups. 

Disability – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the 
grounds of disability?  Disability is recognised under the Equality Act as ‘a physical or mental 
impairment which has a substantial and long term effect on a person’s ability to carry out normal 
day to day activities.’ 

Gender Reassignment – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of gender reassignment?  The Equality Act recognises this where a person 
is proposing to undergo, is undergoing, or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for 
changing sex.  

Marriage / Civil Partnership – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of marriage or civil partnership?  Under the Equality Act, no such protection 
exists for single or unmarried people.

Pregnancy / Maternity – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential 
impact on the grounds of pregnancy or maternity?

Race – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the grounds 
of race?  Race is recognised under the Equality Act as a person’s skin colour, nationality or ethnic 
origin. 

Gender – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on the 

Page 97



2

grounds of gender?  Including men, women and transgender people.   

Sexual Orientation – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on 
the grounds of sexuality?  Including heterosexual, gay, lesbian and bisexual people. 

Religion or belief – Is there any concern that these proposals could cause differential impact on 
the grounds of religion or faith?  All faiths recognised in the European Convention of Human 
Rights are included.  

A commentary has been provided for each policy where appropriate – see Appendix A

11. Decisions and / or recommendations (including supporting rationale)

The Corporate Plan, Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy have been developed 
specifically to address the needs of the Borough and there is no adverse impact on any particular 
group or groups. As projects identified in the Corporate Plan, Budget and MTFS are developed 
further, equality impact assessments will be undertaken at that time.

12. Is an Equality Action Plan required?

No.

Page 98



1

MEETING ON

COUNCIL 28th FEBRUARY 2018

TITLE PROPOSER Agenda 
item No.

LABOUR GROUP BUDGET 
AMENDMENT

Councillor 
M. Tomlinson

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Labour Group proposes an amendment to the 2018/19 budget as recommended to this 
Council by Cabinet on 14th February 2018. This paper summarises our proposals for 
consideration by Council and our continued priorities for future years.

1.2 In order to allow full consideration of these proposals, they ought to be published within the 
Council Agenda so as to seek as wide support as possible, both from elected members and 
the Council Tax payers of South Ribble.  We have also consulted with the Statutory Officers 
to ensure our amendment is both legal and possible to deliver.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.1 We propose to deliver no Council Tax increase next year. We strongly believe that as an 
Authority we must only ever look to raise local taxation when we need to, not just because 
we can. Council Tax is a regressive form of taxation which always hits the vulnerable in 
society the most.  From the budget proposals submitted, we feel that there is no justification 
in increasing the Council Tax base, as we are nowhere near maximising the opportunities to 
generate income from our assets.  

2.2 This Council Tax freeze will be funded by increasing the targets for savings and efficiencies 
through transformation; setting a realistic target for extra income generation; and taking a 
modest sum from the cash reserves the Council currently holds. . 

2.3 In future years Labour Group will seek the removal of Council Tax Support Scheme and 
this is budgeted to be removed from 2019/20 onwards. There will be a requirement for urgent 
work to be undertaken by Council Officer’s to set the wheels in motion for the withdrawal of 
this scheme, that unjustly impacts on those who can least afford it.

2.4 We also would seek to fund referenda to Parish the whole borough, this is critical to ensure 
community engagement is fully enhanced and all opportunities for additional funding for local 
community projects are maximised. This is a one-off cost and balances could fund this. In 
addition, we will seek to establish a Community Initiative Fund from 2019/20 onwards; as 
detailed in our budget of last year, we feel we have a duty to support the voluntary 
sector/individual community initiatives.

2.5 Our focus is to also drive out significant savings from maximising the sharing of services 
with partners, and feel this is an area where significant focus is required in the coming 
months.  Furthermore, we must develop strategies that can deliver significant income to the 
Council for the utilisation of our assets, such as festivals and events in our parks and open 

Page 99

Agenda Item 8b



2

spaces and far greater commercial use of the space within the Civic Centre. We intend to set 
ambitious targets in both these areas over the medium term financial plan.

2.6 Our plan is ambitious and proactive but deliverable. Therefore, some use of balances is 
required in the early years to balance the budget. However, our longer-term ambition will 
deliver a positive financial contribution to offset this.

3. PROPOSAL FOR 2018/19 BUDGET

 Zero increase in Council Tax in 2018/19.

 Increase target for transformation/shared services savings by £75,000.

 Seek additional income of £50,000 in 2018/19.

 Utilise £96,000 from balances to balance the budget.

4. COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

4.1 With regards to the amendments to the Budget for 2018/19, the proposed increase in 
transformation savings and income targets would need to be delivered in order to mitigate 
the loss of potential future income from not increasing Council tax. There is an adequate 
level of reserves to meet the use of balances proposed.

4.2 The budget sets additional challenging savings and income generation targets for 2019/20 to 
2022/23. If these targets aren’t delivered, balances could be used in the short-term to 
balance the budget. However, this is not sustainable in the long term.    

5. COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

5.1 What the Labour group propose are amendments to the proposed budget by the 
administration. Advance notice of such proposals is clearly to be welcomed and is good 
practice. There are no specific legal issues that need to be made in this context. The general 
legal issues associated with budget setting are set out in the report that contains details of 
the administration’s proposals. Clearly it is for members to assess the desirability and 
deliverability of the proposed amendment from the Labour group.  

Page 100



3

FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST
PORTFOLIO 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Leader 1,910 1,966 1,932 1,955 1,994
Finance 874 895 895 895 895
Corporate Support and Assets 5,287 5,230 5,356 5,462 5,571
Neighbourhoods & Streetscene 5,354 5,345 5,378 5,498 5,608
Public Health Safety & Wellbeing 422 437 452 465 475
Regeneration and Leisure 1,434 1,465 1,461 1,486 1,515
Strategic Planning & Housing 141 96 16 16 16

Pensions Triennial Review 0 0 200 200 200
Restructure savings (210) (410) (410) (410) (410)
Staff Turnover Savings Target (100) (100) (100) (100) (100)

TOTAL SERVICE BUDGETS 15,112 14,924 15,180 15,466 15,764

Financing and Investment (2,563) (2,479) (2,438) (2,438) (2,438)

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves 30 (90) 30 30 30

BOROUGH COUNCIL BUDGET REQUIREMENT 12,579 12,355 12,772 13,058 13,356

FUNDED BY:
Revenue Support Grant/Tariff adjustment 0 494 494 494 494
Transition Grant 0 0 0 0 0
New Homes Bonus (net of City Deal payments) (407) (135) (59) 0 0
Retained Business Rates (net of City Deal payments) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293) (4,293)
Council Tax (7,467) (7,516) (7,616) (7,766) (7,826)

TOTAL FUNDING (12,167) (11,450) (11,474) (11,565) (11,625)

FORECAST BUDGET GAP 412 905 1,298 1,493 1,731

18/19 BUDGET PROPOSALS:
Investment in Corporate Plan (net) 173 125 100 100 100
Net borrowing costs from Capital Strategy 45 140 520 880 900
Indicative Savings and income from Capital Strategy 0 0 (100) (1,186) (1,186)
Transformation and Shared Services savings (270) (580) (615) (615) (615)
Additional Transformation Savings (75)
Increase in Shared Services Savings (250) (400) (400) (400)
Release from Transformation Fund (79) 0 0 0 0
Fees and Charges (60) (121) (121) (121) (121)
New Income Generation (50) (200) (300) (400) (500)
Council Tax increases 0 (147) (298) (451) (607)
Remove Council Tax Support Scheme from 19/20 0 73 73 73 73
Consultation cost re borough-wide parishes 100 0 0 0
Community Initiative Fund 0 120 120 120 120

MTFS ASSUMPTIONS:
Contribution to Capital Asset reserve 0 0 0 635 538
Forecast net Business Rates Growth 0 0 (250) (500) (500)

96 165 27 (372) (467)
Contribution (from)/to General Fund Balance (96) (165) (27) 372 467
FORECAST BUDGET (SURPLUS)/DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

LABOUR GROUP ALTERNATIVE BUDGET & MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO DATE OF MEETING

COUNCIL 28th February 2018

Report template revised June 2008

SUBJECT PORTFOLIO AUTHOR ITEM

COUNCIL TAX SETTING 2018/19 FINANCE PETER 
HAYWOOD

SUMMARY AND LINK TO CORPORATE PRIORITIES

This report is presented to allow determination of the Council Tax requirement and Council Tax for 
South Ribble Borough Council for 2018/19. The Council Tax provides the financial resources to 
help pay for all of the Council’s services. It is fundamental in supporting the delivery of all our 
corporate priorities.   

PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to enable the Council to calculate and set the Council Tax for 
2018/19. 

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council approve the formal Council Tax resolution appended to this report and in doing 
so, approve the Council’s budget for 2018/19.

DETAILS AND REASONING

At its meeting on 14th February 2018, the Cabinet considered the updated financial strategy and 
draft budget proposals for the coming year.  The Cabinet has made a number of recommendations 
concerning the budget for 2018/19, which included a proposal to increase the Council Tax by 
2.99%. Taking into consideration the proposal to increase the Band D Council Tax by 2.99% to 
£214.61 (excluding parish and town council precepts), the draft resolution, incorporating the 
recommendations from the Cabinet, is now appended to this report for consideration and approval. 

As the “Billing Authority” for the South Ribble area, the Council also collects the Council Tax on 
behalf of the County Council, Police and Crime Commissioner, Combined Fire Authority and 
Parish/Town Councils.  The appropriate share of the money collected is paid over to these 
organisations to help pay for the services they are responsible for delivering.  The Council Tax 
already agreed separately by each of these organisations, and for which they are individually 
accountable, is set out below and in the draft resolution.

Town & Parish Councils 

The Town & Parish Council Precepts for 2018/19 are detailed together with a comparison with 
2017/18 in Appendix C and total £365,053. 

The changes included within The Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) 
Regulations 2012, mean that these precepts take into account the cost of localised Council Tax 
Support. 

There has been an overall reduction in the average Band D Council Tax for Town and Parish 
Councils of 8.2% and this results in an average Band D Council Tax figure of £10.27 for 2018/19. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 9



2

Lancashire County Council 

Lancashire County Council met on 8th February 2018 and set their precept at £46,022,493, in 
addition a contribution of £341,952 will be made from the surplus in the Collection Fund. This 
results in a Band D Council Tax of £1,294.92, which is an increase of 5.99% when compared to the 
current year’s charge.  Following an offer from the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government, Lancashire County Council has decided to increase their 2018-19 Council Tax by an 
additional 3% (up to a total of 5.99%) without being required to hold a referendum, to assist the 
authority in meeting expenditure on adult social care. 

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire 

The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire on 16th February 2018 agreed a precept of 
£6,306,715, in addition a contribution of £46,289 will be made from the surplus in the Collection 
Fund. This results in a Band D Council Tax of £177.45, an increase of 7.25% on the current year’s 
charge. 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority met on 19th February 2018 and set their precept at 
£2,397,582, in addition a contribution of £18,347 will be made from the surplus in the Collection 
Fund. This results in a Band D Council Tax of £67.46, an increase of 2.99% when compared to the 
current year’s charge. 

2017-18 2018-19 Increase/Decrease
South Ribble Borough Council £208.38 £214.61 2.99%
Lancashire County Council £1,221.74 £1,294.92 5.99%
Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire £165.45 £177.45 7.25%
Lancashire Combined Fire and Rescue Authority £65.50 £67.46 2.99%
Sub Total £1,661.07 £1,754.44 5.62%
Town & Parish Council Average £11.27 £10.27 -8.20%
Total £1,672.34 £1,764.71 5.52%

WIDER IMPLICATIONS

In the preparation of this report, consideration has been given to the impact of its proposals in all 
the areas shown below.  A risk assessment has also been carried out.  The table shows the 
implications in respect of each of these.

FINANCIAL The draft resolution in the appendix to the report comprises the formal 
approval the Council’s Council Tax requirement for 2018/19.

LEGAL
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires billing authorities to fix 
the council tax for a financial year by 11th March in the preceding 
financial year.

RISK

At law the Council Tax must be set by the 11th of March at the very latest.

Any failure to set the Council Tax could result in loss of income, 
significant administrative costs as well as reputational damage. There is a 
further risk that a failure to set a Council Tax in a timely fashion could 
result in intervention from the Secretary of State.

Page 104



3

OTHER (see below) None

Asset Management Corporate Plans and 
Policies Crime and Disorder Efficiency Savings/Value 

for Money
Equality, Diversity and 
Community Cohesion

Freedom of Information/ 
Data Protection Health and Safety Health Inequalities

Human Rights Act 1998 Implementing Electronic 
Government

Staffing, Training and 
Development Sustainability

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Budget report as approved by Cabinet on 14th February 2018
Localisation of Council Tax Support Scheme report as approved by Cabinet on 6th December 
2017.
Council Tax Base 2017/2018 Delegated Decision on 18th December 2017
South Ribble Borough Council’s Council Tax Support Scheme

Precept letters/emails from:
 Lancashire County Council;
 The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire;
 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority; and 
 Parish/Town Councils. 

THE IMPACT ON 
EQUALITY

The setting of Council Tax is legal requirement, and funds the services 
provided by all the precepting bodies as well as South Ribble Borough 
Council. Failure to set the Council Tax would adversely affect provision 
of these services to some of the most vulnerable in society.

Page 105



4

APPENDIX A

THE COUNCIL IS RECOMMENDED TO RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS

1. That the following be approved:-

(a) The revenue estimates for 2018/2019.

(b) The capital programme for 2018/2019.

2. It be noted that on the 18th December 2017 under a delegated decision the Council calculated 
the Council Tax Base based on information held as at the 30th November 2017 as required by 
legislation for 2018/19 as follows:-

(a) For the whole of Council area as 35,540.8 [Item T in the formula in Section 31B of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the “Act”)]; and

(b) For dwellings in those parts of its area to which Parish precepts relates as attached in 
Appendix C.

3. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 2018/19 
(excluding Parish precepts) is £214.61.

4. The following amounts be calculated for the 2018/19 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of  
the Act:

(a)  £51,634,405 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for
the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into account all 
precepts issued to it by Parish and Town Councils. (This expenditure 
includes the government tariff payable in respect of business rates of 
£9,933,983)

(b)  £43,641,941 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for
the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. (This income includes 
business rates baseline funding of £12,191,087).

(c) £7,992,464 being the amount by which the aggregate at 4(a) above exceeds the
aggregate at 4(b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance 
with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax requirement for the 
year. (Item R in the formula in Section 31B of the Act).

(d) £224.88 being the amount at 4(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item T (2(a)
above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of 
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year (including 
Parish precepts).

(e) £365,053 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish precepts) 
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the attached Appendix 
B).

(f) £214.61 being the amount at 4(d) above less the result given by dividing the
amount at 4(e) above by Item T (2(a) above), calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of 
its area to which no Parish precept relates.

5. To note that the County Council, the Lancashire Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire 
Authority have issued Precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 42A of the Local 

Page 106



5

Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the Council’s area as indicated 
in the table below.

6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council 
Tax for 2018/19 for each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

South Ribble Borough Council

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H

£143.07 £166.92 £190.76 £214.61 £262.30 £309.99 £357.68 £429.22

Lancashire County Council

Valuation Bands

A B C D E F G H
£863.28 £1,007.16 £1,151.04 £1,294.92 £1,582.68 £1,870.44 £2,158.20 £2,589.84

Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H

£118.30 £138.02 £157.73 £177.45 £216.88 £256.32 £295.75 £354.90

Lancashire Combined Fire Authority

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H

£44.97 £52.47 £59.96 £67.46 £82.45 £97.44 £112.43 £134.92

7. In accordance with Section 59A of South Ribble Borough Council’s Council Tax Support 
Scheme and the decision taken by Cabinet on 6th December 2017 that the weekly deduction 
should be between £3.00 and £5.00 per week, that Council determine the reduction in Council 
Tax Support applicable to working age claimants with effect from the 1st April 2018 as being 
£3.50 per week.

8. South Ribble Borough Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2018/19 is not excessive in 
accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Page 107



6

APPENDIX B

Council Tax Schedule Bands
2018/19 A B C D E F G H

South Ribble Borough Council £143.07 £166.92 £190.76 £214.61 £262.30 £309.99 £357.68 £429.22
Lancashire County Council £863.28 £1,007.16 £1,151.04 £1,294.92 £1,582.68 £1,870.44 £2,158.20 £2,589.84
Lancashire Police Authority £118.30 £138.02 £157.73 £177.45 £216.88 £256.32 £295.75 £354.90
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority £44.97 £52.47 £59.96 £67.46 £82.45 £97.44 £112.43 £134.92
Total Unparished Areas £1,169.62 £1,364.57 £1,559.49 £1,754.44 £2,144.31 £2,534.19 £2,924.06 £3,508.88
         
Farington £15.17 £17.70 £20.23 £22.76 £27.82 £32.88 £37.93 £45.52
Farington and South Ribble BC £158.24 £184.62 £210.99 £237.37 £290.12 £342.87 £395.61 £474.74
Farington Total £1,184.79 £1,382.27 £1,579.72 £1,777.20 £2,172.13 £2,567.07 £2,961.99 £3,554.40
         
Hutton £16.54 £19.30 £22.05 £24.81 £30.32 £35.84 £41.35 £49.62
Hutton and South Ribble BC £159.61 £186.22 £212.81 £239.42 £292.62 £345.83 £399.03 £478.84
Hutton Total £1,186.16 £1,383.87 £1,581.54 £1,779.25 £2,174.63 £2,570.03 £2,965.41 £3,558.50
         
Longton £15.70 £18.32 £20.93 £23.55 £28.78 £34.02 £39.25 £47.10
Longton and South Ribble BC £158.77 £185.24 £211.69 £238.16 £291.08 £344.01 £396.93 £476.32
Longton Total £1,185.32 £1,382.89 £1,580.42 £1,777.99 £2,173.09 £2,568.21 £2,963.31 £3,555.98
         
Penwortham £15.09 £17.61 £20.12 £22.64 £27.67 £32.70 £37.73 £45.28
Penwortham and South Ribble BC £158.16 £184.53 £210.88 £237.25 £289.97 £342.69 £395.41 £474.50
Penwortham Total £1,184.71 £1,382.18 £1,579.61 £1,777.08 £2,171.98 £2,566.89 £2,961.79 £3,554.16
         
Much Hoole £18.25 £21.29 £24.33 £27.37 £33.45 £39.53 £45.62 £54.74
Much Hoole and South Ribble BC £161.32 £188.21 £215.09 £241.98 £295.75 £349.52 £403.30 £483.96
Much Hoole Total £1,187.87 £1,385.86 £1,583.82 £1,781.81 £2,177.76 £2,573.72 £2,969.68 £3,563.62
         
Little Hoole £18.35 £21.41 £24.47 £27.53 £33.65 £39.77 £45.88 £55.06
Little Hoole and South Ribble BC £161.42 £188.33 £215.23 £242.14 £295.95 £349.76 £403.56 £484.28
Little Hoole Total £1,187.97 £1,385.98 £1,583.96 £1,781.97 £2,177.96 £2,573.96 £2,969.94 £3,563.94
         
Samlesbury and Cuerdale £10.64 £12.41 £14.19 £15.96 £19.51 £23.05 £26.60 £31.92
Samlesbury and Cuerdale and South Ribble BC £153.71 £179.33 £204.95 £230.57 £281.81 £333.04 £384.28 £461.14
Samlesbury and Cuerdale Total £1,180.26 £1,376.98 £1,573.68 £1,770.40 £2,163.82 £2,557.24 £2,950.66 £3,540.80

P
age 108



7

Appendix C

Parish and Parish Precepts

 2017/18 2018/19

Tax Base Band D Precept Tax Base Band D

Equivalent Precept EquivalentParish/ Town Council Precept 

Properties

Band D 
Equivalent

 Properties

Band D Equivalent

 £  £ £  £

Farington          
50,000 2,174.3

                           
23.00          50,000 2,196.9                            22.76 

Hutton          
22,000 888.8

                           
24.75          22,000 886.9                            24.81 

Longton          
73,200 3,086.0

                           
23.72          73,200 3,108.3                            23.55 

Penwortham        
170,000 7,510.2

                           
22.64        170,000 7,510.1                            22.64 

Much Hoole          
52,969 700.2

                           
75.65          19,353 707.2                            27.37 

Little Hoole 22,500 802.3 28.04 22,500 817.3 27.53

Samlesbury & Cuerdale            
7,000 495.8

                           
14.12            8,000 501.3                            15.96 

Total     397,669 15,657.6      365,053 15,728.0  

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO ON

COUNCIL 28th February 2018
September 2017

TITLE PORTFOLIO REPORT OF

Treasury Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 Finance Deputy S151 Officer

Is this report a KEY DECISION (i.e. more than £100,000 or 
impacting on more than 2 Borough wards?)

Is this report on the Statutory Cabinet Forward Plan?

Is the request outside the policy and budgetary framework and 
therefore subject to confirmation at full Council? 

Is this report confidential?

Yes 

Yes 

 No

No 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 To present the Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Management and 
Investment Strategies for 2018/19 to 2022/23, and the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement 
for 2018/19.

2. CABINET RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Council approve:

 the Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 to 2022/23 in paragraphs 9.2, 9.3, 9.5, and 9.6.
 the annual Minimum Revenue Policy (MRP) statement in paragraph 9.4.
 the Treasury Strategy, and Treasury Indicators for 2018/19 to 2022/23 in paragraphs 

10.6, 10.7 and 11.4.
 the Annual Investment Strategy including Investment Counterparties in section 11.

3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES
The report relates to the following corporate priorities 

Clean, green and safe Strong and healthy communities

Strong South Ribble in the heart of 
prosperous Lancashire

Efficient, effective and exceptional 
council

√

Page 111

Agenda Item 10



2

4. BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

4.1 Council of 1 March 2017 approved the Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18, including 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators, the Treasury Management and Investment Strategies, 
and the annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement for 2017/18. Treasury 
Management activities during the year have been overseen by the Governance Committee.

4.2 This report updates Prudential and Treasury Indicators for financial years 2017/18 to 
2019/20, and introduces provisional indicators for financial years 2020/21 to 2022/23. It 
presents updated Treasury Management and Investment Strategies, including a revised list 
of Investment Counterparties, and proposes the Minimum Revenue Policy Statement for 
2018/19.

4.3 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised 
during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to 
ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is 
needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments 
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before 
considering investment return.

4.4 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, 
essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the Council can meet its capital 
spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or 
short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses.

4.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury 
management as “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks.”

5. CAPITAL STRATEGY 

5.1 In December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. As 
from 2019/20, all local authorities will be required to prepare an additional report, a Capital 
Strategy report, which is intended to provide the following: 

 a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services

 an overview of how the associated risk is managed
 the implications for future financial sustainability

The aim of this report is to ensure that all elected members on the full council fully 
understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite entailed by this 
Strategy.

5.2 The Capital Strategy from 2019/20 will include capital expenditure, investments and liabilities 
and treasury management in sufficient detail to allow all members to understand how 
stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability will be secured.

5.3 The report Capital Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 is not intended to meet this requirement of 
the CIPFA Codes. That report does not cover treasury management. All treasury 
management issues for 2018/19 and subsequent years are covered in this report.

Page 112



3

6. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2018/19

6.1 The strategy for 2018/19 covers two main areas:

Capital issues
 the capital plans and the Prudential Indicators;
 the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy.

Treasury management issues
 the current treasury position;
 Treasury Indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
 prospects for interest rates;
 the borrowing strategy;
 policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 debt rescheduling;
 the investment strategy;
 creditworthiness policy; and
 the policy on use of external service providers.

6.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 
Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code, and 
MHCLG Investment Guidance.

6.3 On 2 February 2018 The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government issued its 
Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments (3rd edition) and Statutory Guidance 
on Minimum Revenue Provision. With the exception of some paragraphs, the adoption of the 
new MRP Guidance is from financial year 2019/20, but earlier adoption is encouraged. 
Strategies relating to 2018/19 and future financial years need not include all of the additional 
disclosures required by the investment guidance if not practical to do so. Any relevant new 
disclosures should be presented to Council in full in the first Strategy reported after 1 April 
2018.

7. TRAINING

7.1 The CIPFA Code requires the Responsible Officer to ensure that members with responsibility 
for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management. This especially 
applies to members responsible for scrutiny. Training will be provided on the implications of 
the revised CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes, and the revised MHCLG 
Investment Guidance and MRP Guidance.

7.2 The training needs of treasury management officers are reviewed periodically. Both CIPFA 
and Link Asset Services provide workshops and seminars.

8. TREASURY MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

8.1 The Council uses Link Asset Services, Treasury solutions (formerly Capita Asset Services) 
as its external treasury management advisors.

8.2 The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with 
the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our 
external service providers.

Page 113



4

8.3 It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management 
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The Council will ensure 
that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be assessed 
are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review. 

9. CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19 – 2022/23 AND MRP STATEMENT

9.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management activity. 
The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential indicators, which are 
designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans.

9.2 Capital expenditure 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both those 
agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.  

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 1 - Capital Expenditure Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Health, Leisure & Wellbeing 1,950 4,100 15,600 1,850 950

Place 1,374 1,750 2,000 2,000 1,650

Excellence & Financial Sustainability 3,350 2,824 450 650 650

Carried forward from 2017/18 programme 1,477 0 0 0 0

Total Capital Strategy 2018/19 - 2020/21 0 8,151 8,674 18,050 4,500 3,250

2017/18 Capital Programme 3,004 0 0 0 0 0

Additional finance lease liability 124 104 0 0 0 0

Capital Expenditure Total 3,128 8,255 8,674 18,050 4,500 3,250

The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are 
being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a 
funding borrowing need. 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 2 - Capital Financing Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Receipts 228 450 2,000 1,000 950 1,600

Grants & Contributions 1,659 1,394 2,750 2,760 1,800 1,450

Revenue and Reserves 832 3,839 2,124 800 800 200

Net financing needed for year 409 2,572 1,800 13,490 950 0

Page 114



5

9.3 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement)

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The 
CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid 
for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s 
indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure above, which 
has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.  

The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is a 
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each 
assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used.

The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (finance leases). Whilst these increase the 
CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a 
borrowing facility by the lease provider and so the Council is not required to separately 
borrow for these schemes. The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 3 - Capital Financing Requirement Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening CFR 5,302 4,722 6,360 6,971 19,203 18,380

Net financing need for the year (Table 2) 409 2,572 1,800 13,490 950 0

Less MRP/VRP (989) (934) (1,189) (1,258) (1,773) (1,790)

Closing CFR 4,722 6,360 6,971 19,203 18,380 16,590

9.4 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital spend 
each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the Minimum Revenue Provision - MRP), 
although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary 
revenue provision - VRP). 

CLG regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so long as 
there is a prudent provision.

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Policy Statement:

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be Supported 
Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be:

 Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former CLG 
regulations (option 1).

This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR) each 
year.

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (finance leases) the MRP policy will be:

 Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (option 3).

Page 115



6

This option provides for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life.

Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP.

9.5 Affordability prudential indicators

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential indicators, 
but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the affordability of the 
capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment 
plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council is asked to approve the following 
indicator:

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

% % % % % %

Ratio 8.36 7.95 10.79 11.82 17.06 16.99

Table 4 - Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 
Revenue Stream

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in the 
budget and capital strategy reports.

9.6 Core funds and expected investment balances

The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing 
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 
(asset sales etc.). 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 5 - Year-End Resources Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fund balances / reserves (26,739) (20,278) (16,932) (14,127) (13,633) (13,411)
Capital receipts (1,856) (1,500) (1,000) (500) (100) 0
Provisions (1,200) (1,200) (1,200) (1,200) (1,200) (1,200)
Total core funds (29,795) (22,978) (19,132) (15,827) (14,933) (14,611)
Working capital* (4,500) (4,250) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) (4,000)
Under/(over) borrowing (Table 6) 3,973 4,073 3,125 2,163 1,790 0

Expected investments (30,322) (23,155) (20,007) (17,664) (17,143) (18,611)

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year-end; these may be higher mid-year 

10. BORROWING

10.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in paragraph 9.2 above provide details of the service 
activity of the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 
organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient cash is 

Page 116



7

available to meet this service activity and the Council’s capital strategy. This will involve both 
the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of 
appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the relevant Treasury / Prudential 
Indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the annual Investment Strategy.

10.2 Current portfolio position

10.3 The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2017, with forward projections, is 
summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the treasury management 
operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing. 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 6 - Portfolio Position Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Debt at 1 April 0 0 1,750 3,550 17,040 16,590
Other long-term liabilities (OLTL) 941 749 537 296 0 0

Total gross debt 1 April 941 749 2,287 3,846 17,040 16,590

Expected change in Debt 0 1,750 1,800 13,490 (450) 0
Expected change in OLTL (192) (212) (241) (296) 0 0

Expected change in gross debt (192) 1,538 1,559 13,194 (450) 0

Gross debt 31 March 749 2,287 3,846 17,040 16,590 16,590

Capital Financing Requirement (Table 3) 4,722 6,360 6,971 19,203 18,380 16,590

Under / (over) borrowing 3,973 4,073 3,125 2,163 1,790 0

10.4 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that the 
Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these is that the Council 
needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2018/19 and the 
following two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future 
years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.

10.5 The Deputy S151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential indicator in 
the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This view takes into account 
current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget report. 

10.6 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity

The Operational Boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 
expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be 
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund under-borrowing 
by other cash resources.

Page 117



8

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 7 - Operational Boundary Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Debt 0 1,750 3,550 17,040 16,590 16,590

Other long-term liabilities 749 537 296 0 0 0

Operational Boundary 749 2,287 3,846 17,040 16,590 16,590

The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator represents a 
control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external 
debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council.  It reflects the 
level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable in the longer term.

 This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

 The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit:

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Table 8 - Authorised Limit Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Debt 3,000 4,750 6,550 20,040 19,590 19,590

Other long-term liabilities 749 537 296 0 0 0

Authorised Limit 3,749 5,287 6,846 20,040 19,590 19,590

10.7 Maturity structure of borrowing

These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling 
due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 0%
12 months to 2 years 0% 0%
2 years to 5 years 0% 0%
5 years to 10 years 0% 0%
Over 10 years 0% 100%

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate 
borrowing 2018/19

Table 9 - Maturity Structure of Borrowing

It is not anticipated that any borrowing will be taken at variable interest rates.

Page 118



9

10.8 Control of interest rate exposure

Please see paragraphs 10.9, 11.4 and Appendix A.

Appendix A compares the forecast of a year ago with that prepared for the mid-year review, 
and the current forecast.

10.9 Borrowing strategy

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the capital 
borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan 
debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a 
temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty 
risk is still an issue that needs to be considered.
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted 
with the 2018/19 treasury operations. The Deputy S151 Officer will monitor interest rates in 
financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances:

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short term rates 
(e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of 
deflation), then long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential rescheduling from 
fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be considered.

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and short term 
rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the start date and 
in the rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic 
activity or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-
appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than 
they are projected to be in the next few years.

Any decisions will be reported at the next available opportunity.

10.10 Policy on borrowing in advance of need

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to profit from 
the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance will be within 
forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully 
to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the 
security of such funds.

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal and 
subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. 

11. ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

11.1 Investment Policy

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local Government 
Investments (“the Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code 
of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The Council’s 
investment priorities will be Security first, portfolio Liquidity second, and only then return 
(Yield).

In accordance with the above guidance from the CLG and CIPFA, and in order to minimise 
the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in order to 
generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables diversification and 

Page 119



10

thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the 
Short Term and Long Term ratings.  

Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is important to 
continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in 
relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions operate. The 
assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To 
achieve this consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on 
market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit 
ratings. 

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other such 
information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust scrutiny 
process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

Treasury Management Practice 1 (TMP1) deals with credit and counterparty risk 
management. In applying this practice, the following limits are relevant:

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, with 
maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where 
applicable.

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not meet the 
specified investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in aggregate in non-specified 
investments, specifically term deposits with UK local authorities.

11.2 Creditworthiness policy

The Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services. This 
service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three 
main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of 
counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays: 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit Outlooks in a 
weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads for which 
the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness 
of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to determine the suggested 
duration for investments. The Council will therefore use counterparties within the following 
durational bands:

Yellow 5 years
Purple 2 years

Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi 
nationalised UK Banks)

Orange 1 year
Red 6 months
Green 100 days  
No colour Not to be used 

The yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, money market funds 
and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt.

Page 120



11

The Link Asset Services’ creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information other 
than just primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it does not 
give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term rating (Fitch 
or equivalents) of   F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be occasions when the 
counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these ratings but may 
still be used.  In these instances consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings 
available, or other topical market information, to support their use.

All credit ratings will be monitored weekly, and will be checked at the time of placing 
investments. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use 
of the Link Asset Services’ creditworthiness service, and has access to the websites of Fitch, 
Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. 

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately.

 in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information in 
movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided exclusively to it by Link 
Asset Services. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an institution or 
removal from the Council’s lending list.

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this Council 
will also use market data and market information, information on any external support for 
banks to help support its decision making process. 

Page 121



12

Category Institutions

LAS 
Colour 
Code

Maximum 
Period Limit per Institution

DMADF (DMO) Yellow 6 months Unlimited
UK Local Authority Yellow 2 years £5m per LA

UK part-
nationalised 
institutions

Royal Bank of Scotland 
group Blue 1 year £5m per group

Orange 1 year
Red 6 months
Green 3 months

Orange 1 year
Red 6 months
Green 3 months

Money Market Funds

Money Market 
Funds (CNAV) **

MMFs of high credit 
quality - AAA rated

Instant 
access £5m per fund

Enhanced Money 
Market Funds 
(VNAV)

EMMFs of high credit 
quality - AAA rated T+2 or T+3 DELETE this category

Changes from the Investment Counterparties maximum periods and limits for 2017/18 are in bold.

** Funds used by the council in 2017/18 were BlackRock, Federated, and Standard Life.

Non-UK Banks Non-UK banks of high 
credit quality

£4m per group (or independent 
institution); £8m in total for this 
category

Investment Counterparties 2018/19

Banks & Building Societies: Call Accounts /Term Deposits / Certificates of Deposit (CDs)

Government 
related/guaranteed 

UK-incorporated 
Institutions

UK banks and building 
societies of high credit 
quality

£5m per group (or independent 
institution)

11.3 Country limits

The Council has determined that, in addition to UK counterparties, it will only use approved 
counterparties from European Union (EU) countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating 
of AA- from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of 
this report are shown below. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should 
ratings change in accordance with this policy.

Currently the only approved non-UK counterparty is German bank Landesbank Hessen-
Thueringen Girozentrale (Helaba). The Council has invested a maximum of £4m with this 

Page 122



13

counterparty, but could deposit up to £4m in addition with other non-UK counterparties of 
high credit quality, the maximum sum to be invested with non-UK banks being £8m. 

APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS

AAA                     
·          Denmark
·          Germany
·          Luxembourg
·          Netherlands 
·          Sweden

AA+
·          Finland

AA
·          France
·          U.K.

AA-
·          Belgium   

11.4 Investment strategy

In-house funds
Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow requirements and 
the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments up to 12 months).

Investment returns expectations 
Bank Rate is forecast to stay flat at 0.50% until quarter 4 2018 and not to rise above 1.25% 
by quarter 1 2021.  Bank Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are: 

 2017/18  0.50%  
 2018/19  0.75%
 2019/20  1.00%
 2020/21  1.25%   

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for periods 
up to about three months during each financial year are as follows: 

Now 2017/18 
report

2017/18 0.40% 0.25%
2018/19 0.60% 0.25%
2019/20 0.90% 0.50%
2020/21 1.25% 0.75%
2021/22 1.50% 1.00%
2022/23 1.75% 1.50%
2023/24 2.00% 1.75%
Later years 2.75% 2.75%

The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently skewed to the upside and are 
dependent on how strong GDP growth turns out, how quickly inflation pressures rise and how 
quickly the Brexit negotiations move forward positively.  

Page 123



14

Investment Treasury Indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater than 
365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to 
reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds 
after each year-end.

The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

UK Government 0 0 0 0 0 0
UK Local Authorities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
UK Banks & Building Societies 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-UK Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

Table 10 - Maximum Principal Sums 
Invested > 365 Days

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business reserve 
instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits (overnight 
to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.

11.5 Investment Risk Benchmarking

This Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance of its 
investment portfolio of 7 day LIBID plus 15%.

11.6 End of Year Investment Report

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as part of its 
Annual Treasury Report.

11.7 Accounting treatment of investments

The accounting treatment may differ from the underlying cash transactions arising from 
investment decisions made by this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any 
adverse revenue impact, which may arise from these differences, officers will review the 
accounting implications of new transactions before they are undertaken.

11.8 Impact of MIFID II reforms from 3 January 2018

Under MIFID II, all local authorities are now classified by default as retail counterparties and 
have to consider whether to opt up to professional status and for which types of investments. 
Where required by counterparties, this Council has opted up to professional status and to 
date has not lost the ability to invest with existing counterparties.

12. COMMENTS OF THE ACTING STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

12.1 This report sets out in detail, and requests approval of, the Treasury Management and 
Investments Strategies for the Council, which includes the proposed funding of the 5 year 
Capital Strategy, which is a separate item on this agenda. In adherence with best practice, 
this report also updates the projected Prudential and Treasury Indicators. 

Page 124



15

12.2 The current MRP policy has been reviewed in line with current guidance and it meets the 
requirement for a prudent provision. This report therefore asks Cabinet to recommend to 
Council the MRP Policy Statement for 2018/19 (paragraph 9.4).

13. COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

13.1 The Treasury Strategy and associated documents are designed to ensure compliance with 
all relevant regulations and statutory codes of practice.

14. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice & Cross-Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (December 2017 edition)
CIPFA Treasury Risk Management Toolkit for Local Authorities
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (December 2017 edition)
CIPFA Standards of Professional Practice: Treasury Management
DCLG/MHCLG Guidance on Local Government Investments
DCLG/MHCLG Guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision

APPENDIX A – Comparison of Interest Rate Forecasts

Jane Blundell
Deputy Section 151 Officer

Report Author: Telephone: Date:
Michael Jackson
Principal Financial Accountant

01257 
515490

22/1/18

  

Page 125



1

APPENDIX A

Comparison of Interest Rate Forecasts – Treasury Strategy 2017/18 – 2019/20 (Mar 2017), Treasury Management Activity Mid-Year Review 
2017/18 (rates Aug 17), and Treasury Strategy 2018/19 – 2020/21 (Dec 2017)

Dec 17 Aug 17 Mar 17 Dec 17 Aug 17 Mar 17 Dec 17 Aug 17 Mar 17 Dec 17 Aug 17 Mar 17 Dec 17 Aug 17 Mar 17
Mar-18 0.50 0.25 0.25 1.60 1.60 1.70 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.90 2.90 3.00 2.60 2.70 2.80
Jun-18 0.50 0.25 0.25 1.60 1.70 1.70 2.30 2.30 2.40 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.70 2.80 2.80
Sep-18 0.50 0.25 0.25 1.70 1.70 1.70 2.40 2.40 2.40 3.00 3.00 3.10 2.80 2.90 2.90
Dec-18 0.75 0.25 0.25 1.80 1.80 1.80 2.40 2.40 2.40 3.10 3.10 3.10 2.90 2.90 2.90
Mar-19 0.75 0.25 0.25 1.80 1.80 1.80 2.50 2.50 2.50 3.10 3.10 3.20 2.90 2.90 3.00
Jun-19 0.75 0.50 0.50 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.60 2.50 2.50 3.20 3.20 3.20 3.00 3.00 3.00
Sep-19 0.75 0.50 0.50 1.90 1.90 1.90 2.60 2.60 2.60 3.20 3.30 3.30 3.00 3.00 3.10
Dec-19 1.00 0.75 0.75 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.70 2.60 2.60 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.10 3.10 3.10
Mar-20 1.00 0.75 0.75 2.10 2.00 2.00 2.70 2.70 2.70 3.40 3.30 3.40 3.20 3.10 3.20
Jun-20 1.00 2.10 2.80 3.50 3.30
Sep-20 1.25 2.20 2.90 3.50 3.30
Dec-20 1.25 2.30 2.90 3.60 3.40
Mar-21 1.25 2.30 3.00 3.60 3.40

Bank Rate %

5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year

PWLB Borrowing Rates %
(including 0.20% certainty rate adjustment)

P
age 126



1

REPORT TO ON

Cabinet

Council

25 January 2018

28 February 2018
September 2017

TITLE REPORT OF

Timetable of Meetings 2018/19
Legal Services Manager 

/ Interim Monitoring 
Officer

Is this report confidential?      No

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

To determine the dates of the meetings of the Council, Cabinet and the various 
Committees for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Timetable of Meetings for 2018/19 as set out in the attached appendix be 
approved.

3.   CORPORATE PRIORITIES

The report relates to the following corporate priorities

Clean, Green and Safe Strong and Healthy Communities

Strong South Ribble in the heart 
of prosperous Lancashire

Efficient, Effective and Exceptional 
Council

x

4. TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2018/19 

4.1 The Timetable of Meetings for 2018/19 is set out in the attached appendix.

4.2 The variances from last year are:

 The timescales for meetings of the Governance Committee have been revised 
to take into account the new deadlines for the Closure of Accounts by the end 
of May each year and the publication of the certified accounts with the external 
audit opinion and certificate by the end of July each year in accordance with 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015;

 The meetings of the Governance Committee will need to be held on Thursdays 
instead of Wednesdays (except in May 2018, when the meeting will be held on a 
Tuesday) to facilitate the revised timescales referred to above;

Page 127

Agenda Item 11



2

 There will be a two week gap between the meetings of the Scrutiny Committee 
and Cabinet, and where applicable the full Council. This is to enable reports to 
be updated if necessary and published with the agendas for subsequent 
meetings in line with good governance practice; and

 There will be an Ordinary Council meeting and a Budget Council meeting on 6 
February and 27 February 2019 respectively to enable the separate items of 
business to be considered.

4.3 The timetable will facilitate the submission of quarterly performance management 
reports and budget monitoring reports at the appropriate timescales within the 
Council Year.

4.4 The average frequency of the meetings set out in the Appendix is as follows:

Council - every two months

Cabinet - every five/six weeks
Scrutiny Committee

Planning Committee - every four weeks

Governance Committee - every two months
General Licensing Committee

Standards Committee - quarterly
Taxi Licensing Forum

4.5 The meetings of the General Licensing Sub Committee Panels will be held on an 
ad-hoc basis as and when required.

4.6 The dates of the Shared Services Joint Committee meetings have still to be added 
to the Timetable following liaison with Chorley Borough Council.

4.7 The SMT and relevant team leaders have been consulted and where comments 
have been received, these have been incorporated in the proposed timetable. 

4.8 Dates for Neighbourhood Forums will be confirmed in consultation with the 
appropriate members and added to the timetable in due course.

4.9 It should be noted that following the Council Elections on 2 May 2019, it will be 
necessary to hold the Annual Council Meeting and the first Business Meeting of 
Council in the same week on Tuesday 14 May and Thursday 16 May 2019 
respectively to enable the appointment of the Mayor; and the membership of 
Committees to be determined and the first meetings of the Governance Committee 
and Planning Committee to be held on 28 May and 29 May 2019 respectively 
following the Spring Bank Holiday.

Page 128



3

5.   WIDER IMPLICATIONS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTATION

5.1 Comments of the Statutory Finance Officer

The timetable takes account of the reduced statutory timescales for the reporting 
and approval of the Council’s Statement of Accounts. 

5.2 Comments of the Monitoring Officer

Clearly for the Council to do its business effectively there needs to be a carefully 
planned timetable of meetings in place. This report addressed this need.

Other implications: 

 Risk

 Equality & Diversity

 HR & Organisational 
Development 

 Property & Asset 
Management

 ICT / Technology

Failure to have in place a robust and effective decision 
making structure and timetable of meetings could leave 
the Council’s decisions open to challenge. This risk is 
addressed by the proposals within the report.

There are no equality implications arising from this report.

There are no HR & Organisational Development 
implications arising from this report.

There are no Property & Asset Management implications 
arising from this report.

There are no ICT / Technology implications arising from 
this report.

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

There are no background papers to this report.

7. APPENDICES

Timetable of Meetings 2018/19
Timetable Summary 

David Whelan
Legal Services Manager / Interim Monitoring Officer

Report Author: Telephone: Date:

Steve Pearce 01772 
625307

31/01/18

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Mon 1 Mon

Tue 1 2 1 Tue

Wed 2 1 3 2 1 Wed

Thu 3 2 4 1 3 2 Thu

Fri 4 1 3 5 2 4 1 1 3 Fri

Sat 5 2 4 1 6 3 1 5 2 2 4 CG LG Sat

Sun 6 3 1 5 2 7 4 2 6 3 3 5 Sun

Mon 7 4 2 6 3 8 5 3 7 4 4 1 6 Mon

Tue 8 5 3 7 4 9 6 4 8 5 5 2 7 Tue

Wed 9 6 4 8 5 10 7 5 9 6 6 3 8 Wed

Thu 10 7 5 9 6 11 8 6 10 7 7 4 9 Thu

Fri 11 8 6 10 7 12 9 7 11 8 8 5 10 Fri

Sat 12 CG LG 9 7 11 8 13 10 8 12 9 9 6 11 CG LG Sat

Sun 13 10 8 12 9 14 11 9 13 10 10 7 12 Sun

Mon 14 11 9 13 10 15 12 10 14 11 11 8 13 Mon

Tue 15 12 10 14 11 16 13 11 15 12 12 9 14 Tue

Wed 16 13 11 15 12 17 14 12 16 13 13 10 15 Wed

Thu 17 14 12 16 13 18 15 13 17 14 14 11 16 Thu

Fri 18 15 13 17 14 19 16 14 18 15 15 12 17 Fri

Sat 19 16 14 18 15 20 17 15 19 16 16 13 18 Sat

Sun 20 17 15 19 16 21 18 16 20 17 17 14 19 Sun

Mon 21 CG Ihpc 18 16 20 17 22 19 17 21 18 18 15 20 Mon

Tue 22 19 17 21 18 23 20 18 22 19 19 16 21 Tue

Wed 23 20 18 22 19 24 21 19 23 20 20 17 22 Wed

Thu 24 21 19 23 20 25 22 20 24 21 21 18 23 Thu

Fri 25 22 20 24 21 26 23 21 25 22 22 19 24 Fri

Sat 26 23 21 25 22 27 24 22 26 23 23 20 25 Sat

Sun 27 24 22 26 23 28 25 23 27 24 24 21 26 Sun

Mon 28 25 23 27 24 29 26 24 28 25 25 22 27 Mon

Tue 29 26 24 28 25 30 27 25 29 26 26 23 28 Tue

Wed 30 27 25 29 26 31 28 26 30 27 27 24 29 Wed

Thu 31 28 26 30 27 29 27 31 28 28 25 30 Thu

Fri 29 27 31 28 30 28 29 26 31 Fri

Sat 30 28 29 29 30 27 Sat

Sun 29 30 30 31 28 Sun

Mon 30 31 29 Mon

Tue 31 30 Tue

C Council Standards Shared Services

Ac Annual Council Standards Training (5.30pm) Cabinet Workshop (9.30am) Conservative Group Meetings (Saturdays at 9am)

Ct Council Tax Setting Council Governance Budget Cabinet Workshop (9.30am)

Ca Cabinet (5pm) Governance Training (5.30pm) Farington Parish Council (7pm)

Bc Budget Cabinet (5pm) My Neighbourhood Chairs (4.30pm) Much Hoole Parish Council (7.30pm) Member Learning Hour

Sc Scrutiny My Neighbourhood Workshop (all members) Little Hoole Parish Council (7pm) Lancs Assoc of Local Councils (7pm)

ScB Scrutiny Committee Budget Central Neighbourhood Forum (7pm) Longton Parish Council (7.30pm) Central Lancs Strategic Planning JAC (5.30pm)

P Planning Eastern Neighbourhood Forum (7pm) Samlesbury & Cuerdale Parish Council (7.30pm) Elections/Referendum

PT Planning Training (5.30pm) Leyland Neighbourhood Forum (7pm) Hutton Parish Council (7.30pm) Weekends/Bank Holidays

L Licensing Penwortham Neighbourhood Forum (7pm) Penwortham Town Council (7pm) School Holidays

LSP Licensing Sub Panel (2pm) Western Parishes Neighbourhood Forum (7pm) Scrutiny Training (5.30pm) Meetings commence at 6pm unless otherwise stated

scpc

C

fpc

C

ptc

P

mpc

ptc

P mpc

ptc

Ca

lpc ptclpc

Bank Holiday 

lhpc

CG

CGCG

mpc

lhpc

S

P

CG

Boxing Day

Sca

CG

Christmas Day

L

CG

lhpc

ScT

ScaCG

S

Bank Holiday 

P

CG

LH

J

CG

L

P

LH

scpc

LH

mpcP

fpc

S

Sc

E

CG

Ct

J

fpc

LH LH

S

CG

C

ptc

scpc
Good Friday 

GJ

TTF

LH

Bank Holiday 

P

Easter Monday 

scpc

E

PT

Ac

LG

Ca

CG CG

SOUTH RIBBLE BOROUGH COUNCIL

DRAFT TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS 2018/19  (25/01/18) PUBLIC

New Year's Daylpc

SEPT 2018 OCT 2018

G

LG

lpc

fpc

P

J

P

ptc

G

lhpc

PT

ScaSca

fpc

mpcLH

L

MAY 2018 JUNE 2018 JULY 2018

L

NOV 2018

Sc

FEB 2019 MAR 2019DEC 2018 MAY 2019APRIL 2019JAN 2019

LG

ptc

CG

lpc ptc lpc ptc

CG

lpc

Bank Holiday CG

AUG 2018

Sca

Ac

J

Sc

C

LG

lhpc

TTF

CG

G

CGBank Holiday 

L

Sc scpc

PTP

LH

CG

CG

G

ce

le

mnw

mnc

lpc

SCafpc

lhpc

wp

ST

G

GT

pe

ea

hpc

Ss

LG

TTF

bcW

Shadow Cabinet (10am)

scpc

J

LH

lc

Taxi Trade Forum (5pm)

ptc

mpc

W

Labour Group Meetings (10am)

C

P

ptc

Sc ScP

C

lpc

P

lpc

C

L

lhpc fpcfpc

CG

LG

G

CG

Ca

LH

TTF

Ca mpc mpc mpc

fpcCGlhpcfpc

PT

mpc

S

ScB

BcTTF LH

Sca

fpc

scpc

PT

Ca

fpc

CG

CG

mpc

G

Sca

lhpc

CG CG LGSca CG

lpc

Sc

Ca

Campc

fpc

CG

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH RIBBLE BOROUGH COUNCIL – SUMMARY OF MEETINGS 2018/19 (Public)
May
2018

June 
2018

July 
2018

Aug
2018

Sep
2018

Oct
2018

Nov
2018

Dec
2018

Jan
2019

Feb
2019

Mar
2019

Apr
2019

COUNCIL 6.00pm
Wednesday

15 (AC)
(Tue)
17

(Thurs)

25 26 5 6
27 (B)

10

Cabinet 5.00pm
Wednesday

6 11 12 17 21 23 13 (B) 20

General 
Licensing 
Committee

6.00pm
Tuesday

12 24 11 20 15 12

Governance 
Committee

6.00pm
Thursday 

29
(Tues)

26 20 22 24 14

Planning 
Committee

6.00pm
Wednesday

30 20 18 8 5 10 7 6
(Thurs)

9 7
(Thurs)

6 3

Scrutiny 
Committee

6.00pm
Thursday

31 28 30 4 8 10 14 (B) 7

Shared 
Services Joint 
Committee

6.00pm

(To be 
determined)

Standards 
Committee

6.00pm
Thursday

7 6 13 21

The Appeals Committee, Licensing Act 2003 Committee and General Licensing Sub Committee Panels meet on an ad-hoc basis. 

(AC) – Annual Council Meeting (B) – Budget Council

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



                       
This Motion is proposed by Councillor Paul Wharton and seconded by Councillor Claire 
Hamilton.

Reducing single use plastic (SUP) use in the Borough of South Ribble

“Recent research shows, eight million metric tonnes of plastic ends up in the world's oceans 
each year, endangering marine life. There is also a growing understanding of the risks posed 
to human health by toxic chemicals present in plastics. 

Six months after the introduction of the 5p bag charge, use of single-use plastics bags had 
already dropped by 85%. 300 million tons of plastic are produced around the globe each 
year. Of this, 50% is for disposable applications such as packaging.

The Government has announced a consultation into a possible tax on single use plastics, 
but this Council believes that we should eliminate their use as soon as possible.

Council therefore resolves to:

 Develop a robust strategy to make South Ribble Council a 'single-use plastic free' 
authority by the end of 2018 including an end to the purchase and procurement of SUPs 
through the Council's supply chain;

 End the provision of SUP products such as cups and cutlery in council buildings;
 Investigate the possibility of requiring pop up food and drink vendors at Council run 

events to avoid SUPs as a condition of contract
 Work with tenants and operators in commercial properties owned by South Ribble 

Borough Council to encourage the phasing out of SUP cups, bottles, cutlery and straws;
 Encourage the Borough's businesses, organisations and residents to go 'single- use 

plastic free' working with best practice partners to explore the creation of a 'plastic free 
network,' that could provide business support, practical guidelines and advice to help 
local businesses transition from SUPs to sustainable alternatives.”

Page 135

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	5a Minutes of Governance Committee held on 31 January 2018
	5b Minutes of Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 8 February 2018
	5c Minutes of Cabinet meeting held on 14 February 2018
	6 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 and Corporate Risk Register 2018/19
	06(i) - Appendix 1 - Corporate Plan Final 160218
	06(ii) - Appendix 2 Corporate Plan report - Corporate Risk Register 2018-19
	06(iii) - Appendix 3 Corporate Plan report - Equality Impact Assessment Jan 2018

	7 Capital Strategy
	8a Budget 2018/19 and Medium Term Financial Strategy
	8b Proposed Amendment to the Budget 2018/19 by the Labour Group
	9 Council Tax Setting 2018/19
	10 Treasury Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23
	11 Timetable of Meetings 2018/19
	Draft Committee Timetable 2018-19 (Public)
	Summary of Meetings 2018-19 (Public)

	12 Notice of Motion

